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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY
11000 N. LA CANADA DRIVE
ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA 85737

Administrative Offices (520) 229-4700 Fax (520) 297-0428
www.townoforovalley.com

November 18, 2008

Honorable Mayor, Members of Town Council and
Citizens of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona:

State law mandates that cities publish a complete set of financial statements presented in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
by a certified public accounting firm licensed in the State of Arizona. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Town of Oro
Valley, Arizona (Town) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Town.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all
of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the Town has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the Town’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to
compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town’s financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town’s financial statements have been audited by Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C., a certified
public accounting firm. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are fairly presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The independent
auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.



PROFILE OF THE TOWN

The Town of Oro Valley was incorporated in 1974. It is located in northeastern Pima County, six
miles north of the Tucson city limits, and has a land area of 34.85 square miles. The Town’s
current population is estimated at 43,651.

The Town of Oro Valley operates under the Council-Manager form of government.
Policymaking and legislative authority is vested in the Town Council, which consists of a Mayor
and six Council Members. Council Members are elected to four-year staggered terms. The
citizens of Oro Valley elect the Mayor. The Council, from among its members, selects the Vice-
Mayor. The Town Council is responsible, among other things, for the adoption of local
ordinances, budget adoption, the development of citizen advisory committees and the hiring of
the Town Manager. The Town Manager is responsible for implementation of the policies of the
Town Council. The Town Manager appoints all department heads except the Chief of Police,
Town Attorney and Magistrate.

The Town of Oro Valley provides a full range of services including police protection; the
construction and maintenance of streets and related infrastructure; the provision of water
services; public transportation services; recreational activities, a public library and cultural
events. In addition to general government activities, the governing body is financially
accountable for the Municipal Property Corporation; therefore, this activity is included in the
reporting entity. Additional information regarding the Municipal Property Corporation can be
found in Note 1 in the notes to the basic financial statements.

As with all cities in the State of Arizona, the Town of Oro Valley is required to comply with
Article IX, Section 20 (1) of the Arizona Constitution, which sets limits on the Town’s legal
budget capacity. The Town currently operates under the Alternative Expenditure Limitation —
Home Rule Option. This option allows the Town Council to establish the budgetary limits
locally, rather than being restricted by the State-imposed expenditure limitation. The voters must
authorize this option every four years. It was last authorized by the citizens of Oro Valley in
2006.

The annual operating budget serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and
control. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual operating budget approved by the Town Council. The Town’s proposed
operating budget is presented to the Town Council for review throughout the budget cycle
starting in January and tentatively approved in June or July. The Town Council is required to
hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt the final budget by no later than the
second Monday in August. The Town Manager, subject to Town Council approval, may at any
time transfer various unencumbered appropriation balances or portions thereof between a
department or activity. The adopted budget cannot be amended in any way without Town
Council approval.

A schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget and actual are
provided in this report for the General and Highway User Funds. These schedules are presented
as required supplementary information. For other Governmental Funds, this schedule is
presented in the Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules section of this report.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS FOR THE YEAR

During fiscal year 2007-08, the Town continued to invest in programs and amenities that keep
Oro Valley the Community of Excellence it strives to be. During this time, the Mayor and Town
Council was guided by the Town’s adopted strategic plan which identified the following focus
areas:

Financial Sustainability

Quality of Life

Economic Development

Protection of Environment and Cultural Assets
Leadership and Communication

The following are some of the highlights and accomplishments of the Town during the fiscal
year:

Town Council

e Conducted a Town-wide community survey to determine resident’s satisfaction with Oro
Valley’s quality of life and services

e Participated in the conceptual planning process with the Arizona State Land Department
for the potential annexation of State land north of Town

e Voted to place the ballot question requesting authorization for the Town to issue $48.6
million in general obligation bonds for development of the Naranja Town Site on the
November, 2008 election ballot

e Enacted a new Stormwater Utility Fee for all residential and commercial customers in
Town to improve stormwater management and quality

Town Clerk
e Improved citizen access to public information by providing on-line full text search
capability of the Oro Valley Town Code and implemented live voice and video streaming
capability of regular Town Council meetings

Town Manager
e Launched the Oro Valley Vista as a full-color informational publication mailed to Town
residents each month
e Hired a new Communications Administrator, Communications Specialist and Constituent
Services Coordinator to enhance public outreach and communication

e Implemented license plate reader program to detect stolen vehicles

e Applied for and received grant funding for safety equipment to be used at night time
accident scenes

e Created an Adopt-A-Business program to address public safety concerns related to retail
and restaurant sectors in Town

e Increased volunteer staffing from 80 to 100 volunteers

e Expanded Neighborhood Watch program with six new groups organized this year
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Planning and Zoning

e Developed Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) policy for
adoption by the Town Council

e Conducted Household Hazardous Waste program and neighborhood cleanups for
Oro Valley residents
Completed Steam Pump Ranch Master Plan process
Coordinated successful Citizens Planning Institute classes resulting in 24
graduates

Parks and Recreation
e Implemented RecTrac software system to allow for on-line registration of
recreation programs
e Installed new pool deck surface at the James D. Kriegh pool
e Added 1.4 miles of shared use paths and 1.77 miled of paved shoulders to Town
inventory
e Installed new irrigation system at James D. Kriegh Park

Public Works

e Continued implementation of Pavement Preservation Program to assess the
overall condition of Town streets
Crack sealed 80 lane miles of the Town’s paved streets
Completed safety improvements at the La Cholla and Lambert Lane intersection
Completed safety improvements at the La Cholla and Glover Road intersection
Hired a Stormwater Manager to manage all aspects of the utility

Water Utility

e Took 5,998 water quality samples with all results meeting federal, state and local
water quality regulations

e Increased customer base in calendar year 2007 by 383 new connections for a total
of 18,035 connections as of 12/31/07

e Delivered 501 million gallons of reclaimed water to area golf courses

e Began construction of Phase 2 of the reclaimed water system designed to deliver
over 300 million more gallons of reclaimed water to area golf courses in the
southern half of Town

e Performed 205 residential water use audits

e Analyzed and updated Alternative Water Resource Development Impact Fees to
pay for future delivery of Central Arizona Project (CAP) water to Oro Valley

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it
is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the
Town operates.
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Local Economy. The local economic outlook for the Town of Oro Valley saw a
continued slowdown in residential construction activity during fiscal year 2007-08. This
was offset, however, by a marked increase in commercial construction activity during the
year. Sales tax collections from construction, retail trade and restaurants and bars and
hotel/motel lodging are the major industries which accounted for 83% of all sales tax
receipts for fiscal year 2007-08.  The Town currently does not have a property tax in
place, therefore the budget is very dependent on sales taxes and state shared revenues to
fund ongoing programs and services. As the Town transitions from “growth” mode to
“maintenance” mode over the next five to ten years, efforts continue to be made to
diversify our revenues, explore the feasibility of additional revenue sources and cost
control efforts.

Construction sales tax collections for fiscal year 2007-08 increased by only $142,724 or
2% as compared to fiscal year 2006-07. Demonstrating the decline in residential
development, single family residential building permits issued during fiscal year 2007-08
totaled 285, down from 335 permits issued in fiscal year 2006-07.

Sales tax collections from retail trade totaled $4,017,101 for this fiscal year. This is an
increase of $352,601 or 10% over last fiscal year. Two new shopping centers, Oracle
Crossings and Steam Pump Village, were open for a full fiscal year in 2007-08 and the
construction of another major retail center began with an expected opening in the fall of
2008. This major retail center will include a Walmart Supercenter, a 12-screen movie
theater complex, a Best Buy electronics store, and a selection of many other smaller
shops and restaurants. When all of the expected commercial construction activity is
completed, it is anticipated that there will be over two (2) million square feet of
commercial retail and office space added to the Town. As such, the Town can expect to
see one-time commercial building-related revenues sustained at higher levels over the
next two years, as well as an increase in related retail sales taxes as those commercial
centers open for business. Once this growth in commercial construction subsides,
however, it is anticipated that those one-time construction-related revenues will
significantly decrease as well.

The Town of Oro Valley also saw further expansion of its flourishing biotechnology
sector during FY 2007-08 with the leading global pharmaceutical company, Sanofi-
aventis, constructing a $60 million research and development facility in Town. The new
110,350 square foot research and development facility has the capacity to almost double
its current workforce over the next few years. Another leading biotech firm in Oro
Valley, Ventana Medical Systems, was purchased by the Swiss pharmaceutical company,
Roche, during FY 2007-08. Ventana has purchased an additional 17-acre site next to its
existing campus and has announced a major expansion of its tissue diagnostics business
over the next five to ten years.

Finally, the Town is currently assessing the annexation potential of 14 square miles of
undeveloped land north of the Town that is owned by the Arizona State Land
Department. Proposed land use designations target the development in this area to



consist of just less than 16,000 dwelling units, along with commercial, resort and
employment center development.

The continued growth in the retail, service, tourism and biotechnology sectors in Oro
Valley provide further evidence of the Town’s growing, diversified economy where local
residents can live, work and shop within the Town boundaries.

Long-term financial planning. On an annual basis, the Town performs a
comprehensive update to its 10-Year Financial Sustainability Plan.  This plan
encompasses a 10-year projection of the costs of existing Town service levels, the
incremental costs of increased service levels, identification of gaps in funding levels,
expected revenue shortfalls and/or surpluses, and recommended service level changes or
additional revenue solutions to meet the Town’s needs over the long term. The scope of
this analysis focuses primarily on the General Fund and the Highway User Revenue
Fund. During FY 2007-08, this plan forecasted that the Town could sustain its existing
service and program levels into the future with current revenue sources, but should the
Town or residents desire increases in programs or service levels requiring additional staff
or resources, then additional, stable revenue sources would need to be implemented to
pay for them. The Town continues to maintain healthy cash reserves in its major
operating funds, with the General Fund’s ending fund balance of $16.7 million equaling
57% of that fund’s adopted expenditure budget of $28.1 million (excluding the
contingency reserve budget).

The Town completed its migration from a traditional line-item budget to a program-based
budgeting approach during fiscal year 2007-08. By doing so, the Town will be able to
measure the specific costs of providing programs and services to its residents, as well as
measure the efficiency with which those programs are provided. To facilitate this change
in approach, the Town implemented a new enterprise resource planning (ERP) system
during fiscal year 2007-08. This is an integrated financial reporting system designed to
more accurately capture costs by program area.

The Town Council continues to analyze and study all available revenue sources available
to the Town in an effort to further diversify its revenue base and provide financial
sustainability into the future. ‘

Cash Management. The Town uses a system of consolidated cash management. Cash
from all funds is pooled in a central disbursement fund. Cash to be used for payment of
current expenditures is maintained in a checking account; the balance of cash is
maintained on deposit with the Arizona State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment
Pool. Cash in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is available upon 24 hours
notice. The LGIP invests in U.S. Treasury Notes, U.S. Treasury Bills and federally
guaranteed insurance contracts. The average interest rate for the fiscal year 2006-07 was
5.200% and 4.096% in fiscal year 2007-08. Investments held in the LGIP earned
$2,067,080 in interest revenue for the year ended June 30, 2008. The account at LGIP for
the construction of the reclaimed water system improvement project and potable water
system improvements and expansion earned $99,809 in interest revenue.
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Trust accounts are held with Wells Fargo Bank for annual debt service payments. Funds
on deposit in the trust accounts are invested solely in obligations that are issued or
guaranteed by the U.S. Treasury, such as U.S. Treasury bills, bonds and notes (“U.S.
Treasury Securities”). Interest on investments held with the trustee earned $58,009 for
fiscal year 2007-08.

A debt service reserve fund was established in 2005 for the construction of the Municipal
Operations Center land and building construction. These funds are maintained in trust
accounts with the Bank of New York Trust Co. N.A.  Funds on deposit in the trust.
accounts are invested solely in obligations that are issued or guaranteed by the U.S.
Treasury, such as U.S. Treasury bills, bonds and notes (“U.S. Treasury Securities”).
Interest on investments held with the trustee earned $35,870 for fiscal year 2007-08.

Risk Management. The Town of Oro Valley participates in the Arizona Municipal Risk
Retention Pool. Risk coverage includes general liability, errors and omissions, property
and automobile insurance. The policy insures up to $2,000,000 per incident occurrence
plus any excess liability of up to a $10,000,000 limit per occurrence per year. Coverage is
provided on a claims-made basis.

The Town participates in the Arizona Municipal Workers Compensation Pool for
workers compensation insurance coverage.

The Town of Oro Valley is self-insured for unemployment compensation.
Unemployment reserves totaled $228,593 as of June 30, 2008 for the Town’s 448 full-
time, part-time and seasonal employees. The Town did not make an unemployment
contribution in fiscal year 2007-08.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2007. This report satisfied both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable
legal requirements. This was the thirteenth year the Town received this prestigious
award.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine
its eligibility for another certificate.
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Acknowledgments. The preparation of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report could not
have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the
Finance Department who assisted and contributed in its preparation. We thank the Mayor and
members of the Town Council for their interest and support in planning and conducting the
financial affairs of the Town in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,
David L. Andrews Stacey Lenmgs, CPA

Town Manager Finance Director
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10120 N. Oracle Road

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C. Tucson, Arizona 85704
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Tel (520) 742-2611
Fax (520) 742-2718

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council
Town of Oro Valley, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund (General, Highway User Revenue, Oracle Road Debt
Service, Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees and Municipal Building Funds), and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona (Town), as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund listed above, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Oro
Valley, Arizona, as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 18, 2008, on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

TUCSON e PHOENIX ¢ FLAGSTAFF
www.heinfeldmeech.com



The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 15 and budgetary comparison
information on pages 60 through 62 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquires of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information such as the introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements
and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

HJ‘*W. M ek < Lo. ((2(.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

November 18, 2008
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

As management of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona (Town), we offer readers of the Town’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in the
introductory section of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial statements which follow the Management’s Discussion and Analysis provide those
significant key financial highlights for 2007-08 as follows.

The Town’s total net assets of governmental activities increased $17.4 million to $155.9 million and
business-type activities increased $7.1 million to $45.9 million representing 77 percent and 23 percent
respectively, of the total net assets of $201.9 million.

General revenues from governmental activities accounted for $31.1 million in revenue, or 61 percent
of all revenues from governmental activities. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for
services and grants and contributions accounted for $20.1 million or 39 percent of total governmental
activities revenues. The Town had $20.7 million of program revenues and $864,484 in general
revenues related to business-type activities.

The Town had $35.4 million in expenses related to governmental activities, an increase of 10 percent
from the prior fiscal year. The Town had $12.9 million in expenses related to business-type activities
an increase of 12 percent from the prior fiscal year.

Among major funds, the General Fund had $30.6 million in revenues, which primarily consisted of
sales taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The total expenditures of the General Fund were $26.5
million. The General Fund’s fund balance decreased from $18.5 million to $16.7 million, primarily
due to a transfer of $3.7 million to the Municipal Operations Fund for construction of a new town
complex.

The Highway User Revenue Fund, had $6.6 million in revenues which primarily consisted of sales
taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The total expenditures of the Highway User Revenue Fund
were $5.6 million.

The Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee Fund had $6.6 million in revenues which
primarily consisted of intergovernmental revenues. The total expenditures of the Townwide Roadway
Development Impact Fee Fund were $9.7 million. The Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fee
Fund’s fund balance increased from $3.7 million to $8.6 million, due primarily to current year loan
proceeds of $8.0 million through a HELP loan from the Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADOT).

The Water Fund operating revenues of $14.2 million exceeded operating expenses of $9.8 million.
The change in net assets of $6.2 million was due to an increase of $3.4 million in capital assets due to
the construction in progress on the Town’s reclaimed water delivery system and $2.8 million in
capital contributions from line extension agreements.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

In the government-wide financial statements the Town’s activities are presented in the following
categories:

¢ Governmental activities — Most of the Town’s basic services are included here, such as
general government, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation. Sales
taxes, intergovernmental, and charges for services finance most of these activities.

¢ Business-type activities — The services provided by the Town included here are water and
stormwater utilities. The services are primarily financed through user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All
of the funds of the Town can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary
funds.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Concl’d)

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus
on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town’s near-term
financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the
General, Highway User Revenue, Oracle Road Debt Service, and the Townwide Roadway
Development Impact Fees, and the Municipal Building Funds, all of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements and schedules.

Proprietary funds. The Town of Oro Valley maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town of Oro Valley uses enterprise funds to account
for its Oro Valley Water Utility and Stormwater Utility.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town’s budget
process. The Town adopts an annual expenditure budget for all governmental funds. A schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances — budget and actual has been provided for the
General Fund and major Special Revenue Fund as required supplementary information.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case
of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $201.9 million as of June 30, 2008.

The largest portion of the Town’s net assets (68 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings and improvements, improvements other than buildings, infrastructure, vehicles,
machinery and equipment and construction in progress), less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in
its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

The Town’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results
of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and
the depreciation of capital assets.

The following table presents a summary of the Town’s net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2008 and June 30, 2007.

2008 2007 2008 2007
Governmental Governmental Business-type Business-type
Activities Activities Activities Activities 2008 Total 2007 Total

Current and other assets $ 46,391,734 § 36,399,408 $29,530,278 §$ 28,631,927 $§ 75,922,012 $ 65,031,335

Capital assets, net 138,925,390 125,795,995 86,592,743 77,102,895 225,518,133 202,898,890
Total assets, net 185,317,124 162,195,403 116,123,021 105,734,822 301,440,145 267,930,225
Current and other liabilities 6,241,535 7,778,755 6,430,049 6,170,121 12,671,584 13,948,876
Long-term liabilities 23,126,853 15,873,961 63,767,001 60,777,911 86,893,854 76,651,872
Total liabilities 29,368,388 23,652,716 70,197,050 66,948,032 99,565,438 90,600,748
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 115,177,344 106,644,847 21,274,023 15,534,043 136,451,367 122,178,890
Restricted 14,072,781 8,326,731 14,072,781 8,326,731
Unrestricted 26,698,611 23,571,109 24,651,948 23,252,747 51,350,559 46,823,856
Total net assets $155,948,736 $138,542,687 $ 45,925,971 $ 38,786,790 $ 201,874,707 $ 177,329,477

The following are significant current year transactions that have had an impact on the Statement of
Net Assets.

e The addition of $11.9 million in business-type activities capital assets through improvements
to the potable water system and expansion of the reclaimed water system.

e The addition of $17.5 million in governmental activities capital assets, including $1.7 million
for vehicles and equipment, and $16.9 million for infrastructure. Infrastructure assets
consisted of First Avenue Widening, Lambert Lane and La Cholla roadway improvement
projects and several subdivision improvements.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont’d)

Changes in net assets. The Town’s total revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, were
$72.8 million. The total cost of all programs and services was $48.2 million. The following table
presents a summary of the changes in net assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and

June 30, 2007.
2008 2007 2008 2007
Governmental Governmental Business-type Business-type 2008 2007
Activities Activities Activities Activities Total Total
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 4,183,553 § 3,765,011  $17,161,552 $13,617,461 §21,345,105 $17,382,472
Operating grants and contributions 5,619,003 4,893,869 5,619,003 4,893,869
Capital grants and contributions 10,264,829 8,321,691 3,567,083 3,066,170 13,831,912 11,387,861
General revenues:
Sales taxes 17,168,998 16,873,630 17,168,998 16,873,630
Franchise taxes 516,652 478,175 516,652 478,175
Impact fees 910,741 1,038,217 910,741 1,038,217
Unrestricted state shared revenues 10,904,654 9,944,318 10,904,654 9,944,318
Investment earnings 1,590,654 1,471,641 864,494 1,163,837 2,455,148 2,635,478
Total revenues 51,159,084 46,786,552 21,593,129 17,847,468 72,752,213 64,634,020
Expenses:
General government 9,080,766 7,529,245 9,080,766 7,529,245
Public Safety 14,347,250 12,352,671 14,347,250 12,352,671
Highways and streets 7,292,972 7,757,276 7,292,972 7,757,276
Culture and recreation 3,644,973 3,375,314 3,644,973 3,375,314
Interest on long-term debt 987,074 996,336 987,074 996,336
Water 12,676,275 11,446,958 12,676,275 11,446,958
Stormwater drainage 177,673 74,235 177,673 74,235
Total expenses 35,353,035 32,010,842 12,853,948 11,521,193 48,206,983 43,532,035
Transfers 1,600,000 69,813 (1,600,000) (69,813)
Increase in net assets $ 17,406,049 $14,845,523 $ 7,139,181 $ 6,256,462 $24,545230 $21,101,985

Total revenues increased $8.1 million or 13 percent primarily due to an increase in charges for
services in the water utility which was from an increase of $1.5 million from water connection fees
and groundwater preservation fees. In addition, the stormwater utility had revenues totaling $1
million from the newly enacted user fees and a state grant used for a drainage project. Sales tax
revenue increased by $1.2 million primarily due to a full year of collections from the 2% utility sales
tax. State/county shared revenues increased by $1 million due to increased distributions based on the
Town’s current population numbers. A HELP loan in the amount of $8 million was received from
the Arizona Department of Transportation for improvements and widening of La Canada Drive.

Expenses increased $4.7 million primarily due to increased salary and benefit costs, the addition of
10 new positions and operational costs across all departments.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Concl’d)

Governmental and Business-type activities. The following table presents the cost of the 7 major
Town functional activities. The table also shows each function’s net cost (total cost less charges for
services generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The
net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the State and Town’s taxpayers by each of
these functions.

2008 2007
Net Net
Total (Expense)/ Total (Expense)/
Governmental Activities Expenses Revenue Expenses Revenue
General government $ 9,080,766 $ (251,600) $ 7,529,245 $ 337,963
Public Safety 14,347,250 (12,843,190) 12,352,671 (10,923,779)
Highways and streets 7,292,972 1,969,833 7,757,276 (816,932)
Culture and recreation 3,644,973 (3,173,619) 3,375,314 (2,631,187)
Interest on long-term debt 987,074 (987,074) 996,336 (996,336)
Total $35,353,035 $(15,285,650) $32,010,842  $(15,030,271)
Business-type Activities
Water 12,676,275 6,973,578 11,446,958 4,873,510
Stormwater drainage 177,673 901,109 74,235 288,928
Total $12,853,948 $ 7,874,687 $11,521,193 $ 5,162,438

e The cost of all governmental activities this year was $35.4 million. The increase of $3.3
million from the prior year was due primarily to increased personnel and operating and
maintenance costs.

e The cost of all business-type activities this year was $12.9 million. The increase of $1.3
million from the prior year was primarily due to an increase in personnel and operating costs
associated with the water and stormwater utility funds.

e Federal and State governments, developer contributions, and charges for services subsidized
certain governmental programs and business-type programs with revenues of $40.8 million.

e Net cost of governmental activities of $15.3 million was financed by general revenues, which
are made up of primarily sales taxes and state shared revenues of $28.1 million.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a
useful measure of the Town’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the Town as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the
Town completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $37.9
million, an increase of $9.7 million due primarily from loan proceeds of $8 million from the Arizona
Department of Transportation and a contribution of $1.6 million from the water utility for
construction of the municipal operations complex.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town. The decrease in fund balance of $1.8
million in the General Fund for the fiscal year to $16.7 million, was due primarily to a transfer of
$3.7 million to the Municipal Operation Fund for construction of new town facilities. In addition,
revenues exceeded budget by $1.2 million from sales tax collections and commercial building permit
fees.

The fund balance of the Highway User Revenue Fund showed an increase of $369,759 primarily due
to lower than anticipated costs related to street improvement projects.

The Townwide Roadway Fund showed an increase of $4.9 million due primarily to receiving a loan
proceeds of $8 million for improvements and widening of La Canada Drive.

The fund balance of the Municipal Building Fund showed an increase of $5.1 million primarily due
to transfers from the General Fund, Highway Fund and Water Utility Fund for construction of new
town facilities.

Proprietary funds. Net assets of the Enterprise Funds at the end of the year amounted to $45.9
million. The increase of $7.1 million from fiscal year 2006-07 was primarily due to the addition of
improvements to the potable water system with capital contributions of $2.8 million and construction
of the reclaimed water system.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There were no amendments to the Town of Oro Valley’s fiscal year 2007-08 operating and capital
budget. A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to the Town’s actual
financial activity for the General Fund is provided in this report as required supplementary
information. The significant variances are summarized as follows:

e The favorable variance of $1.2 million in revenues was a result of sales tax collections of
$13.8 million exceeding budget by $760K and commercial building permit fees of $1.3
million exceeding budget by $700K.

e The favorable variance of $11.7 million (includes contingency reserves of $9.7 million) in
expenditures was a result of departmental savings in personnel vacancies and operation and
maintenance costs.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. As of June 30, 2008, the Town had invested $285.9 million in capital assets,
including buildings, facilities, vehicles, computers, equipment, and infrastructure assets. This
amount represents a net increase prior to depreciation of $28.5 million from last year, primarily due
to the completion of First Avenue widening project ($10 million), several roadway improvements in
the governmental activities and expansion of the potable water system and stormwater system in the
business-type activities. Total depreciation expense for the year was $6.6 million.

The following schedule presents capital asset balances for the fiscal years ended June 30,2008 and
June 30, 2007.

As of As of

Governmental Activities June 30,2008  June 30, 2007
Land $ 18,038,076 $ 17,694,622
Infrastructure 126,949,031 110,082,926
Buildings and improvements 19,832,560 18,956,247
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 8,036,706 7,186,005
Construction in progress 7,359,025 9,708,610
Less: Accumulated depreciation (41,290,008)  (37,832,415)

Total $ 138,925,390  $125,795,995
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Concl’d)

As of As of

Business-type Activities June 30, 2008  June 30, 2007
Land $ 2,410,660 § 2,410,660
Water rights 8,534,490 6,172,361
Water system 84,555,171 79,048,639
Stormwater system 1,028,602

Equipment and vehicles 2,766,095 2,539,885
Construction in progress 6,423,996 3,626,425
Less: Accumulated depreciation (19,126,269)  (16,695,075)

Total $ 86,592,745 § 77,102,895

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 5.

Debt Administration. At year-end, the Town had $89.1 million in long-term debt outstanding, $3.6
million due within one year. The following table presents a summary of the Town’s outstanding
long-term debt for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007.

Governmental Activities

2008 2007
Revenue bonds $ 12,183,046 $12,891,148
Special assessment bonds 3,565,000 3,760,000
Loan payable 8,000,000 2,500,000
Total $ 23,748,046 $19,151,148

Business-type Activities

2008 2007
Revenue bonds $ 59,586,954 $61,568,852
Loan payable 5,731,766
$ 65,318,720 $61,568,852

State statutes currently limit the amount of general obligation debt a Town may issue to 20 percent of
its total assessed valuation for water, sewer, lights, open space preserves, parks, playgrounds and
recreational facilities. The current debt limitation for the Town is $137.3 million.

The Town of Oro Valley received an upgraded bond rating during FY 2006/07 and now maintains a
“AA-“ rating from Standard & Poor’s and an “A-+” rating from Fitch on the outstanding revenue

bonds.

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Notes 6 through 9.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

The unemployment rate for the Town of Oro Valley is currently 3%. Pima County’s and the
State of Arizona’s unemployment rates are 5.6% and 5.9%, respectively.

The Town’s secondary assessed valuation for the current year is $686,707,506, an increase of
18% over last fiscal year.

Single family residential (SFR) building permits issued in this fiscal year totaled 285, which
is down from 335 issued last year. Projections for SFR building permits are 250 for fiscal
year 2008-09 based on the slow down in the housing market.

Two new shopping centers, Oracle Crossings and Steam Pump Village, were open for a full
fiscal year in 2007-08 and the construction of another major retail center began with an
expected opening in fall of 2008.

The adopted combined operating and capital expenditure budget for fiscal year 2008-09 totals
$203.1 million, an increase of 71% over last year’s budget of $118.8 million. This increase is
attributed to the following factors:

Anticipated construction of a municipal operations center to accommodate Police, Public
Works and Water Utility staff. The estimated cost of the complex is $33 million.
Included the capacity to issue $48.6 million in general obligation (GO) bonds to pay for
future development of Phase I of the Naranja Town Site park. This item is placed on the
November 4, 2008 election ballot for voter consideration.

Included funding from Regional Transporation Authority in the amount of $675K for
construction of a Park N’ Ride facility.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to demonstrate the Town’s
accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
information, contact the Finance Department, Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, 11000 North La Cafiada
Drive, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Intergovernmental receivable
Special assessments
Interest receivable
Prepaid items
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond charges
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable (net)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Interest payable
Unearned revenue
Customer deposits payable
Compensated absences
Loans payable
Special assessment bonds
Revenue bonds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Loans payable
Special assessment bonds
Deferred bond premium
Revenue bonds
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Public safety

Highways and streets

Capital outlay

Debt service

Other
Unrestricted

Total net assets

TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 36,908,789 § 23,676,233  $ 60,585,022
1,501,734 1,501,734
2,724,660 2,640,544 5,365,204
779,340 779,340
3,565,000 3,565,000
73,227 41,425 114,652
26,734 26,734
45,579,484 26,358,202 71,937,686
812,250 3,172,076 3,984,326
25,397,101 17,369,145 42,766,246
113,528,289 69,223,598 182,751,887
139,737,640 89,764,819 229,502,459
185,317,124 116,123,021 301,440,145
2,266,113 1,436,123 3,702,236
561,789 51,543 613,332
68,327 620,642 688,969
222,369 1,411,099 1,633,468
235,075 235,075
800,729 159,778 960,507
1,148,233 102,600 1,250,833
637,164 637,164
205,000 205,000
733,900 2,011,100 2,745,000
6,241,535 6,430,049 12,671,584
208,103 43,287 251,390
8,000,000 5,094,602 13,094,602
3,360,000 3,360,000
109,604 1,053,258 1,162,862
11,449,146 57,575,854 69,025,000
23,126,853 63,767,001 86,893,854
29,368,388 70,197,050 99,565,438
115,177,344 21,274,023 136,451,367
354,462 354,462
4,131,971 4,131,971
9,089,229 9,089,229
263,478 263,478
233,641 233,641
26,698,611 24,651,948 51,350,559
$ 155,948,736  $ 45925971 $ 201,874,707

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Net (Expense)
Revenue
and Changes
Program Revenues in Net Assets
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and  Governmental
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities
Primary Government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 9,080,766 $ 3,830,060 $ 87,702 § 4911,404 $ (251,600)
Public safety 14,347,250 69,256 1,434,804 (12,843,190)
Highway and streets 7,292,972 211,088 3,698,292 5,353,425 1,969,833
Culture and recreation 3,644,973 73,149 398,205 (3,173,619)
Interest on long-term debt 987,074 (987,074)
Total governmental activities 35,353,035 4,183,553 5,619,003 10,264,829 (15,285,650)
Business-type activities:
Water 12,676,275 16,803,950 2,845,903
Stormwater drainage 177,673 357,602 721,180
Total business-type activities 12,853,948 17,161,552 ‘ 3,567,083
Total primary government $ 48,206,983 $ 21,345,105 §$ 5,619,003 $ 13,831,912  (15,285,650)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Sales taxes 17,168,998
Franchise taxes 516,652
Impact fees 910,741
Unrestricted state shared revenues 10,904,654
Investment earnings 1,590,654
Transfers 1,600,000
Total general revenues and transfers 32,691,699
Changes in net assets 17,406,049
Net assets, beginning of year 138,542,687
Net assets, end of year $155,948,736

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Assets

Business-type
Activities Totals

$ $  (251,600)
(12,843,190)

1,969,833

(3,173,619)

(987,074)

(15,285,650)

6,973,578 6,973,578

901,109 901,109
7,874,687 7,874,687
7,874,687 (7,410,963)

17,168,998

516,652

910,741

10,904,654

864,494 2,455,148
(1,600,000

(735,506) 31,956,193

7,139,181 24,545,230

38,786,790 177,329,477

$ 45,925,971  $201,874,707
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2008
Oracle Road
General HURF Debt Service
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,945,022 $ 3,431,023 § 98,759
Taxes receivable 1,501,734
Accounts receivable 371,923 695,464
Intergovernmental receivable 536,207 243,133
Special assessments 3,565,000
Interest receivable 37,015 12,884
Prepaid items 26,734
Total assets $§ 18418635 § 4,382,504 $§ 3,663,759
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 893,017 $ 317,864 $ 1,800
Accrued wages and benefits 505,849 47,665
Intergovernmental payable 68,255
Interest payable
Deferred revenue 235,075 3,565,000
Customer deposits payable 50,051 202
Total liabilities 1,752,247 365,731 3,566,800
Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Undesignated 16,666,388 4,016,773 96,959
Unreserved reported in:
Special revenue funds
Debt service funds
Capital projects funds
Total fund balances 16,666,388 4,016,773 96,959

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 18,418,635 $ 4,382,504 §$ 3,663,759

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Page 26



Townwide

Roadway Non-Major Total
Development Municipal Governmental Governmental
Impact Fees Building Funds Funds

$ 8,042,863 $ 5,912,584 $ 3,478,538 $§ 36,908,789
1,501,734

1,577,985 79,288 2,724,660
779,340

3,565,000

18,487 4,841 73,227
26,734

$ 9,639,335 § 5,912,584 § 3,562,667 $ 45,579,484

$ 827,737 § 14,351  § 211,344 $ 2,266,113
8,275 561,789

72 68,327

222,369 222,369
3,800,075

750,476 800,729

1,050,106 14,351 970,167 7,719,402
8,589,229 5,898,233 35,267,582
1,517,419 1,517,419

166,519 166,519

908,562 908,562

8,589,229 5,898,233 2,592,500 37,860,082

$ 9,639,335 § 5,912,584 § 3,562,667 § 45,579,484
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2008

Total governmental fund balances
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental acitivities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets $ 180,215,398

Less accumulated depreciation (41,290,008)

Special assessments receivable are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deferred items related to the issuance of bonds are amortized over the life of
the associated issuance in the government-wide statements but not

reported in the funds.
Deferred bond charges 812,250
Deferred bond premium (109,604)

Long-term liabilites are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds.

Special assessment bonds (3,565,000)
Revenue bonds (12,183,046)
Loans payable (8,000,000)
Compensated absences (1,356,336)

$ 37,860,082

138,925,390

3,565,000

702,646

(25,104,382)

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Oracle Road Debt
General Fund HURF Service
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 13,278,681 $ 2,639,189
Franchise taxes 516,652
Impact fees
Special assesments 193,023
Intergovernmental 11,773,977 3,698,292
Licenses, fees & permits 2,761,145 31,539
Fines, forfeitures & penalties 294,577
Charges for services 983,094
Contributions and donations
Investment earnings 744,393 187,687 172,787
Other 276,611 78,889
Total revenues 30,629,130 6,635,596 365,810
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 7,992,477
Public safety 13,511,713
Highway and streets 3,549,525
Culture and recreation 3,291,775
Capital outlay 1,684,902 2,037,942
Debt service -
Principal retirement 195,000
Interest and fiscal charges 180,439
Total expenditures 26,480,867 5,587,467 375,439
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 4,148,263 1,048,129 (9,629)
Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out (5,959,581) (678,370)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,959,581) (678,370)
Changes in fund balances (1,811,318) 369,759 (9,629)
Fund balances, beginning of year 18,477,706 3,647,014 106,588
Fund balances, end of year $ 16,666,388 $ 4,016,773 96,959

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Townwide

Roadway Non-Major Total
Development Governmental Governmental
Impact Fees Municipal Building Funds Funds

$ $ $ 1,251,128 § 17,168,998
516,652

910,741 910,741

. 193,023

5,198,172 1,193,434 21,863,875
2,792,684

97,344 391,921

57,600 1,040,694

249,999 249,999

339,628 31,773 114,386 1,590,654
172,191 28,099 555,790
6,620,732 31,773 2,991,990 47,275,031
775,019 8,767,496

37,457 13,549,170

6,925 551,421 4,107,871

32,291 3,324,066

7,014,301 672,370 1,680,798 13,090,313
2,500,000 708,102 3,403,102
224,994 502,225 907,658
9,746,220 672,370 4,287,313 47,149,676
(3,125,488) (640,597) (1,295,323) 125,355
8,000,000 8,000,000
5,752,000 2,695,951 8,447,951
(210,000) (6,847,951)

8,000,000 5,752,000 2,485,951 9,600,000
4,874,512 5,111,403 1,190,628 9,725,355
3,714,717 786,830 1,401,872 28,134,727

$ 8,589,229 § 5,898,233 § 2,592,500 $ 37,860,082
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 9,725,355
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities,
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
Expenditures for capital assets $ 12,682,064
Less current year depreciation (4,186,143) 8,496,521
Capital assets contributed by developers to the Town are not recorded in the governmental funds as
they do not provide current financial resources but are recognized in the Statement of Activities as
program revenues. 4,422,015
Special assessment revenues in the Statement of Activities do not provide current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. (195,000)
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but the
issuance increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. (8,000,000)
Repayment of debt principal are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.
Loan principal retirement 2,500,000
Bond principal retirement 903,102 3,403,102
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Amortization of deferred charges (79,416)
Compensated absences (234,425)
Loss on disposal of capital assets (132,103) (445,944)
Change in net assets in governmental activities $

The notes to the financial statements are integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred bond charges
Capital assets, non-depreciable
Capital assets, depreciable (net)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Interest payable
Customer deposits payable
Compensated absences
Loans payable
Revenue bonds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Loans payable
Deferred bond premium
Revenue bonds

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008
Enterprise Funds
Non-Major

Water Enterprise Fund Total
$ 23,570,940 § 105,293 § 23,676,233
2,501,974 138,570 2,640,544
41215 210 41,425
26,114,129 244,073 26,358,202
3,172,076 3,172,076
17,287,679 81,466 17,369,145
68,184,581 1,039,017 69,223,598
88,644,336 1,120,483 89,764,819
114,758,465 1,364,556 116,123,021
1,428,929 7,194 1,436,123
49,286 2,257 51,543
620,642 620,642
1,411,099 1,411,099
159,778 159,778
101,034 1,566 102,600
637,164 637,164
2,011,100 2,011,100
6,419,032 11,017 6,430,049
42,577 710 43,287
5,094,602 5,094,602
1,053,258 1,053,258
57,575,854 57,575,854
63,766,291 710 63,767,001
70,185,323 11,727 70,197,050
20,153,540 1,120,483 21,274,023
24,419,602 232,346 24,651,948
$ 44573,142 §$ 1,352,829 $§ 45,925,971




TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds
Non-Major
Water Enterprise Fund Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 14175476 § 357,602 $ 14,533,078
Total operating revenues 14,175,476 357,602 14,533,078
Operating expenses:
Costs of sales and services 7,164,301 165,217 7,329,518
Depreciation and amortization 2,601,673 12,456 2,614,129
Total operating expenses 9,765,974 177,673 9,943,647
Operating income 4,409,502 179,929 4,589.431
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Impact fees 512,543 » 512,543
Connection fees 1,925,656 1,925,656
Investment earnings 864,262 232 864,494
Other 190,275 190,275
Interest expense (2,910,301) (2,910,301
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) 582,435 232 582,667
Income before capital contributions and
transfers 4,991,937 180,161 5,172,098
Capital contributions 2,845,903 721,180 3,567,083
Transfers out (1,600,000) (1,600,000)
Changes in net assets 6,237,840 901,341 7,139,181
Total net assets, beginning of year 38,335,302 451,488 38,786,790
Total net assets, end of year $ 44573,142 $ 1,352,829 § 45,925,971

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds
Non-Major
Water Enterprise Fund Total
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 13,525,094 $ 582,070 $ 14,107,164 -
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (4,518,028) (350,830) (4,868,858)
Cash payments to employees for services (2,284,272) (82,304) (2,366,576)
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,722,794 148,936 6,871,730
Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities:
Connection fees 1,925,656 1,925,656
Other revenue 190,275 190,275
Interfund borrowing (1,600,000) (1,600,000)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 515,931 515,931
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Development impact fees 512,543 512,543
Acquisition of capital assets (8,305,549) (48,411) (8,353,960)
Proceeds from loans 6,253,260 6,253,260
Principal paid on long-term debt (2,503,392) (2,503,392)
Interest on long-term debt (3,238,557) (3,238,557)
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities (7,281,695) (48,411) (7,330,106)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 919,551 47 919,598
Net cash provided by investing activities 919,551 47 919,598
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 876,581 100,572 977,153
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 22,694,359 4,721 22,699,080
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 23,570,940 $ 105,293 $ 23,676,233
Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating income $ 4,409,502 $ 179,929 $ 4,589,431
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,601,673 12,456 2,614,129
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (671,990) 224,468 (447,522)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 321,352 (269,462) 51,890
Increase in accrued payroll and employee benefits 12,140 1,344 13,484
Increase in compensated absences payable 28,509 201 28,710
Increase in deposits held for others 21,608 21,608
Total adjustments 2,313,292 (30,993) 2,282,299
Net cash provided by operating activities $ ‘ 6,722,794 $ 148,936 $ 6,871,730
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below.
A. Reporting Entity

The Town is a municipal entity governed by an elected mayor and council. As required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the Town and its component units, entities for which the Town is considered to
be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in
substance, part of the Town’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of
the Town, the primary government. The blended component units presented have a June 30 year
end.

The financial reporting entity consists of a primary government and its component units. A
component unit is a legally separate entity that must be included in the reporting entity in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The Town is a primary government
that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of
other state or local governments. Furthermore, component units combined with the Town for
financial statement presentation purposes, and the Town, are not included in any other
governmental reporting entity. Consequently, the Town’s financial statements include the funds
of those organizational entities for which its elected governing body is financially accountable.

Blended Component Unit — The financial reporting entity presented in these financial statements
consists of the Town and one blended component unit. This component unit, discussed below, is
included in the Town’s reporting entity because of the significance of its operational relationship
or financial relationship with the Town. The component unit is governed by a board, substantially
or wholly, comprised of the Town’s elected council. Separate financial statements are not
prepared for the component unit on a stand-alone basis.

The Town of Oro Valley Municipal Property Corporation’s (MPC) Board of Directors consists of
the three members which are appointed by the Town of Oro Valley Town Council. The MPC,
which a non-profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona, was originally
formed for the purpose of assisting the Town in obtaining financing for acquiring the Cafiada
Hills and Rancho Vistoso water companies. The Town has a contractual obligation for the
repayment of the Municipal Property Corporation’s Municipal Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series
1996, 1999, 2001, 2003, 2005, and 2007. The activity of the 1996 MPC is reported in the
applicable water enterprise fund and the activity of the Series 1999, 2001, 2003, 2005, and 2007
MPC is reported in the applicable water enterprise and governmental funds. All related
receivables and payables between the Town and the MPC have been eliminated.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) present financial information about the Town as a whole. The reported information
includes all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town and its component units. For the most part,
the effect of internal activity has been removed from these statements. These statements are to
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. Governmental
activities normally are supported by sales taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Sales taxes,
unrestricted state shared revenues, investment income and other items not included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as
are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
grantor or provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements; however, the effects of interfund
services provided and used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at
amounts approximating their external exchange value.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

grantor or provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements; however, the effects of interfund
services provided and used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at
amounts approximating their external exchange value.

Fund Financial Statements — Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to
be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, special assessments and
investment income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and similar
awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or
provider have been met. Miscellaneous revenue is not susceptible to accrual because generally
they are not measurable until received in cash. Grants and similar awards are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met.
Deferred revenue arise when resources are received by the Town before it has legal claim to them,
as when grant monies are received prior to meeting all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds.

General Fund — This fund accounts for all financial resources of the Town, except those
required to be accounted for in other funds.

Highway User Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for the Town’s share of motor
fuel tax revenues.

Oracle Road Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the special assessment collections
and payment of the outstanding Oracle Road bond issue.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees Fund — This fund accounts for the collection
and capital expenditures of the Townwide Roadway Development Impact Fees.

Municipal Building Fund — This fund accounts for the bond proceeds issued to acquire land
and construct the public works facility.

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund.

Water Fund — This fund accounts for the costs to operate, construct and finance the Town’s
water system.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Town’s enterprise fund are charges to customers for water and
stormwater drainage services. Operating expenses for these funds include the cost of sales and
services, depreciation, and amortization. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds
by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column.

D. Investments
Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost. Money market
investments and participating interest investment contracts with a remaining maturity of one year

or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair
value.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
E. Investment Income

Investment income is composed of interest and net changes in the fair value of applicable
investments.

F. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion
of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. Trade accounts receivable
in excess of 180 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for uncollectibles.

G. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more
and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Certain capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 20-30
Infrastructure 20-50
Vehicles 4-6
Machinery and equipment 7-20

I. Compensated Absences

The Town’s employee annual and sick leave policies generally provide for granting annual and
sick leave with pay. Full-time employees accrue annual leave based on the number of years
employed. Employees who terminate employment shall be paid in a lump sum. Full-time
employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of one work day per month. Part-time employees
whose normal week is twenty hours or more receive sick leave at half the rate of full-time
employees. Once an employee has exceeded 480 hours of accrued sick leave, one half of the sick
leave balance in excess of the 480 hours shall be paid to the employee upon separation from
employment. The current and long-term liabilities, including related benefits, for accumulated
vacation and sick leave are reported on the government-wide financial statements. A liability for
these amounts, including related benefits, is reported in governmental funds only if they have
matured, for example, as a result of employee leave, resignations and retirements. Generally,
resources from the General Fund are used to pay for compensated absences.

J. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable business-type
activities and proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
debt service expenditures.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concl’d)
K. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for expenditures or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose.

L. Interfund Activity

Flows of cash from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund transfers. Interfund transfers between governmental funds are eliminated in the
Statement of Activities. Interfund transfers in the fund statements are reported as other financing
sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary
funds.

M. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

N. Statement of Cash Flows
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash

equivalents at June 30, 2008 were cash in bank and investments held by the County and State
Treasurers.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Excess Expenditures Over Budget — At June 30, 2008, the Town had expenditures in a fund
that exceeded the budget, however, this does not constitute a violation of any legal provisions.

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A.R.S. authorize the Town to invest public monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its
agencies, obligations of the State and certain local government subdivisions, interest-bearing
savings accounts and certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, certain
obligations of U.S. corporations, and certain other securities. The statutes do not include any
requirements for credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, or
foreign currency risk for the Town’s investments.

The State Treasurer’s pools are external investment pools, the Local Government Investment
Pool (Pool 5) and Local Government Investment Pool-Government (Pool 7), with no regulatory
“oversight. The pools are not required to register (and are not registered) with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. No comparable oversight is provided for the County Treasurer’s
investment pool. The fair value of each participant’s position in the State Treasurer and County
Treasurer investment pools approximates the value of the participant’s shares in the pool.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial Credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank
failure the Town’s deposits may not be returned to the Town. The Town does not have a deposit
policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2008, the carrying value of the Town’s deposits
was $407,804 and the bank balance was $819,349, of which $719,349 was exposed to custodial
credit risk as uninsured and Town deposits were collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution’s trust department.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Concl’d)

At June 30, 2008, the Town’s investments consisted of the following.

Investment Type Maturities Fair Value
Money Market — U.S. Treasuries Less than 1 year $ 6,165,780
County Treasurer’s investment pool 108 days average 404,858
State Treasurer’s investment pool 5 45 days average 51,877,877
State Treasurer’s investment pool 7 23 days average 1,723,502
Total $60,172,017

Interest Rate Risk. The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing
interest rates.

Credit Risk. The Town has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.
As of June 30, 2008, the Town’s investment in the State and County Treasurers’ investment
pools did not receive a credit quality rating from a national rating agency. Investments in the
State Treasurer’s investment pool 7 were rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s. For investments in
the State Treasurer’s investment pool 5, 77% of the securities were rated AAA, A+, or Al; all of
the remaining securities were rated A- or better by Standard and Poor’s.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments. The Town’s investment in the State and County
Treasurer’s investment pools represents a proportionate interest in the pool’s portfolio; however,
the Town’s portion is not identified with specific investments and is not subject to custodial
credit risk.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances, net of allowance for uncollectibles, have been disaggregated by type and
presented separately in the financial statements with the exception of due from governmental
entities. Due from governmental entities, net of allowance for uncollectibles, as of year end for
the Town’s individual major funds in the aggregate, were as follows.

Highway
User
General Revenue
Fund Fund
Due from governmental entities:
Due from State government $536,207  $243,133
Net due from governmental entities $536,207  $243,133

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet
earned. Atthe end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue reported
in the governmental funds were as follows.

Unavailable Unearned
Prepaid developer fees (General Fund) $ $ 235,075
Special assessments (Oracle Road Debt Service Fund) 3,565,000
Total deferred revenue for governmental funds $ 3,565,000 $ 235,075
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE S - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 follows.

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 17,694,622 $ 343454  § $ 18,038,076
Construction in progress 9,708,610 9,634,688 11,984,273 7,359,025
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 27,403,232 9,978,142 11,984,273 25,397,101
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Infrastructure 110,082,926 16,866,105 126,949,031
Buildings and improvements 18,956,247 876,313 19,832,560
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 7,186,005 1,711,354 860,653 8,036,706
Total capital assets being depreciated 136,225,178 19,453,772 860,653 154,818,297
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure (30,151,800) (3,135,171) (33,286,971)
Buildings and improvements (3,221,675) (411,189) (3,632,864)
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles (4,458,940) (639,783) (728,550) (4,370,173)
Total accumulated depreciation (37,832,415) (4,186,143) (728,550) (41,290,008)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 98,392,763 15,267,629 132,103 113,528,289

Governmental activities capital assets, net

$ 125,795,995

$ 25,245,771

$12,116,376

$ 138,925,390

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,410,660 $ $ $ 2,410,660
Water rights 6,172,361 2,362,129 8,534,490
Construction in progress 3,626,425 6,270,850 3,473,279 6,423,996
Total 12,209,446 8,632,979 3,473,279 17,369,146
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Water system 79,048,639 5,506,532 84,555,171
Stormwater system 1,028,602 1,028,602
Equipment and vehicles 2,539,885 226,210 2,766,095
Total capital assets being depreciated 81,588,524 6,761,344 88,349,868
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water system (15,400,084) (2,225,341) (17,625,425)
Stormwater system (11,639) (11,639)
Equipment and vehicles (1,294,991) (194,214) (1,489,205)
Total accumulated depreciation (16,695,075) (2,431,194) (19,126,269)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 64,893,449 4,330,150 69,223,599
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 77,102,895 $ 12,963,129 $§ 3,473,279 $§ 86,592,745
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Concl’d)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government ’ $ 244,092
Public Safety 622,432
Highways and streets 3,001,953
Culture and recreation 317,666

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities $4,186,143

Business-type activities:

Water $2,418,738
Stormwater 12,456
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $2,431,194

Construction Commitments — As of June 30, 2008, the Town was involved in several
construction projects. The estimated cost to complete the construction projects is $26.0 million.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 6 - LOANS PAYABLE

In the current year, the Town received an $8,000,000 loan from the Arizona Department of
Transportation (ADOT) for streets projects. The loan payable at June 30, 2008, is presented
below.

Outstanding Due
Interest Rate Principal Within
Governmental activities: (Including Fees) Maturity ~ June 30,2008 One Year
ADOT HELP Loan 3.50% 8/15/11-12  $§ 8,000,000 $
Total $ 8,000,000 $

Principal and interest payments on the governmental activities loans payable at June 30, 2008 are
summarized as follows.

Governmental Activities

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest
12009 $ $ 222,369
2010 255,760
2011 255,760
2012 6,000,000 255,760
2013 2,000,000 63,940

Total $ 8,000,000 $ 1,053,589

In the current year, the Town received a $3,891,131 loan from the Water Infrastructure Finance
Authority of Arizona for water system projects. The Town also received loan financing for water
rights from the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD) valued at $2,362,129 to
be paid back over five years. The loans payable at June 30, 2008 are presented below.

Outstanding Due
Interest Rate Principal Within
Business-type activities: (Including Fees)  Maturity June 30,2008 One Year
WIFA Loan 3.54% 7/1/08-27 $ 3,891,131 $§ 211,383
CAWCD Loan 5.20% 12/1/08-11 1,840,635 425,781
Total $ 5,731,766 $§ 637,164
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 6 - LOANS PAYABLE (Concl’d)

Principal and interest payments on the business-type activities loans payable at June 30, 2008 are

summarized as follows.

Year ending June 30:
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014-18
2019-23
2024-28

Total

NOTE 7 - BONDS PAYABLE

Business-type Activities

Principal Interest

$ 637,164 $§ 215,722
589,856 206,315
618,166 178,004
647,867 148,305
157,529 117,148
875,241 498,143
1,041,322 332,063
1,164,622 134,468

$ 5,731,767 § 1,830,169

Bonds payable at June 30, 2008, consisted of the following outstanding revenue and refunding
bonds. The bonds are both callable and noncallable with interest payable semiannually. Taxes

and Impact Fees are used to pay bonded debt.

Original Outstanding Due
Amount Interest Principal Within
Purpose Issued Rates Maturity  June 30,2008  One Year
Governmental activities:
Revenue Bonds, 1999 $ 2,730,462 4.40-4.50% 7/1/08-09 $ 305,000 $ 200,000
Revenue Bonds, 2000 2,580,000 4.80-5.20% 7/1/08-11 445,000 100,000
Revenue Bonds, 2001 3,362,532 4.13-4.63% 7/1/08-13 934,866 139,950
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003 5,494,920 2.50-5.00% 7/1/08-19 5,206,250 136,500
Revenue Bonds, 2005 4,164,050 3.25-4.75%  7/1/08-25 3,902,750 157,450
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2007 1,389,180 4.00-5.00% 7/1/09-26 1,389,180
Total $ 12,183,046 $ 733,900

Page 50




TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 7 - BONDS PAYABLE (Cont’d)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity on revenue and refunding bonds for governmental
activities at June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows.

Governmental Activities

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest
2009 $ 733,900 § 492,749
2010 699,010 462,840
2011 642,750 436,805
2012 878,430 407,287
2013 832,368 371,006
2014-18 4,286,608 1,299,922
2019-23 2,699,590 535,623
2024-27 1,410,390 103,487
Total $ 12,183,046 $ 4,109,719
Original Outstanding
Amount Interest Principal Due Within
Purpose Issued Rates Maturity ~ June 30,2008  One Year
Business-type activities:
Revenue Bonds, 1999 $ 2,199,538 4.40-5.00% 7/1/08-19 $ 2,050,000 $ 170,000
Revenue Bonds, 2001 5,647,468 4.13-4.63%  7/1/08-13 1,570,134 235,050
Revenue Bonds, 2003 31,750,000 3.00-5.00%  7/1/08-28 27,955,000 1,275,000
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003 10,225,080 2.50-5.00%  7/1/08-19 9,668,750 253,500
Revenue Bonds, 2005 2,050,950 3.13-4.75%  7/1/08-25 1,922,250 77,550
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2007 16,420,820 4.00-5.00%  7/1/09-26 16,420,820
Total $ 59,586,954 $2,011,100

Annual debt service requirements to maturity revenue and refunding bonds for business-type
activities at June 30, 2008, are summarized as follows.

Year ending June 30:
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

2014-18
2019-23
2024-28

2029
Total
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Business-type Activities

Principal Interest

$ 2,011,100 $ 2,612,750
2,485,990 2,538,280
2,947,250 2,441,361
2,836,570 2,336,112
2,912,632 2,215,034
14,523,392 9,252,342
15,770,410 5,639,107
14,434,610 2,662,386
1,665,000 41,625

$ 59,586,954 $29,738,997




TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 7 — BONDS PAYABLE (Concl’d)

Pledged revenues — governmental activities. The Town has pledged future sales (excise) tax
revenues to repay outstanding revenue bonds and refunding revenue bonds of $12.2 million as of
June 30, 2008. Proceeds from the original bond issuances, including those subsequently
refunded, provided financing for land acquisition and facility construction. The bonds are paid
solely from the Town’s sales taxes and are payable through 2027. Total annual principal and
interest payments for all sales tax revenue bonds are expected to require less than 5% of gross
revenues. The total principal and interest to be paid on the bonds is $16.3 million. The current
total sales tax revenues were $30,629,130 and the total principal and interest paid on the bonds
was $1,209,252, or 3.9% of gross revenues.

Pledged revenues — business-type activities. The Town has pledged future water revenues to
repay outstanding revenue bonds and refunding revenue bonds of $59.6 million as of June 30,
2008. Proceeds from the original bond issuances, including those subsequently refunded,
provided financing for the construction and improvements to the Town’s water systems and
infrastructure. The bonds are paid solely from water utility revenues and are payable through
2029. Total annual principal and interest payments for all water revenue bond issuances are
expected to require approximately 25% of gross revenues. The total principal and interest to be
paid on the bonds is $89.3 million. The current total customer gross revenues were $17,668,212
and the total principal and interest paid on the bonds was $4,434,481, or 25.1% of gross
revenues.

NOTE 8 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS

Special assessment bonds at June 30, 2008, consisted of the following outstanding bonds. The
bonds are both callable and noncallable with interest payable semiannually. Special assessments
from the Oracle Road Debt Service Fund are used to pay bonded debt.

Original Outstanding Due
Amount Interest Principal Within
Purpose Issued Rates Maturity  June 30,2008 One Year
Governmental activities:
Special assessments debt $3,945,000 4.20-5.00% 1/1/09-21 $ 3,565,000 $ 205,000
Total $ 3,565,000 $ 205,000
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 8 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS (Concl’d)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity on special assessment bonds at June 30, 2008, are
summarized as follows.

Governmental Activities

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest
2009 $ 205,000 $§ 167,827
2010 215,000 157,577
2011 225,000 146,827
2012 235,000 135,577
2013 250,000 123,827
2014-18 1,415,000 438,735
2019-21 1,020,000 97,156

Total $ 3,565,000 $1,267,526

NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 was as follows.

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Revenue bonds payable $ 12,891,148 $ $ 708,102 $12,183,046 $ 733,900
Special assessments payable 3,760,000 195,000 3,565,000 205,000
Loan payable 2,500,000 8,000,000 2,500,000 8,000,000
Compensated absences payable 1,121,911 1,579,760 1,345,335 1,356,336 1,148,233
Governmental activity long-term
liabilities $ 20,273,059 $ 9,579,760 $ 4,748,437 $25,104,382 § 2,087,133
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds payable $ 61,568,852 § $ 1,981,898 $59,586,954 $ 2,011,100
Loan payable 6,253,260 521,494 5,731,766 637,164
Compensated absences payable 117,177 156,393 127,683 145,887 102,600
Business-type activities long-term
liabilities $ 61,686,029 $ 156,393 $ 2,109,581 $59,732,841 § 2,113,700
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 10 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
At June 30, 2008, interfund balances were as follows.

Interfund transfers:

Transfers in
Municipal Non-Major

Building Governmental
Transfers out Fund Funds Total
General Fund $3,702,000 $ 2,257,581  $5,959,581
Highway User Revenue Fund 450,000 228,370 678,370
Non-Major Governmental Funds 210,000 210,000
Water Fund 1,600,000 1,600,000
Total $5,752,000 $ 2,695,951 $6,847,951

Transfers were made from the General Fund to subsidize the Public Transportation, Capital
Asset Replacement, Pima County Bond Projects, and Municipal Building Funds. Transfers were
made from the General and Highway User Revenue Funds to the Municipal Debt Service Fund to
make the required principal and interest payments on outstanding bonded indebtedness.
Transfers were made from the Highway User Revenue and Water Funds to subsidize the
Municipal Building Fund.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance — Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and
adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The
amount, if any, of expenditures/expenses that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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NOTE 12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Town’s insurance protection is provided by the Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool, of
which the Town is a participating member. The limit for basic coverage is for $2,000,000 per
occurrence on a claims made basis. Excess coverage is for an additional $10,000,000 per
occurrence on a follow form, claims made basis. The aggregate limit is also $10,000,000. No
significant reduction in insurance coverage occurred during the year and no settlements exceeded
insurance coverage during any of the past three fiscal years.

The Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool is structured such that member premiums are based
on an actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow the Pool to meet its expected
financial obligations. The Pool has the authority to assess its members additional premiums
should reserves and annual premiums be insufficient to meet the Pool’s obligations.

The Town is insured by Arizona Municipal Workers Compensation Pool for potential worker
related accidents.

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Descriptions — The Town contributes to the three plans described below. Benefits are
established by state statute and generally provide retirement, death, long-term disability, survivor,
and health insurance premium benefits.

The Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit health insurance
premium plan; and a cost-staring, multiple-employer defined benefit long-term disability plan that
covers employees of the State of Arizona and employees of participating political subdivisions
and school districts. The ASRS is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System Board
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) administers agent multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance
premium plan that covers public safety personnel who are regularly assigned hazardous duty as
employees of the State of Arizona or one of its political subdivisions. The PSPRS, acting as a
common investment and administrative agent, is governed by a five-member board, known as The
Fund Manager, and 162 local boards according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5,
Article 4.
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NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Cont’d)

The Corrections Officer Retirement Plan (CORP) administers an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium
plan that covers certain employees of the State of Arizona’s Department of Corrections and
Department of Juvenile Corrections, and county employees whose primary duties require direct
inmate contact. The CORP is governed by The Fund Manager of PSPRS and the participating
local boards according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 6.

Each plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and
required supplementary information. A report may be obtained by writing or calling the applicable
plan.

ASRS PSPRS/CORP
P.O. Box 33910 3010 E. Camelback Road Suite 200
Phoenix, AZ 85012-0250 Phoenix, AZ 85016

(602) 240-2200 or (800) 621-3778 (602) 255-5575

Funding policy — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan members’
and the Town’s contribution rates.

Cost-sharing plans — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan
members’ and the Town’s contribution rates. For the year ended June 30, 2008, active ASRS
members were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.6 percent (9.1
percent for retirement and 0.5 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered
payroll and the Town was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.6
percent (8.05 percent for retirement, 1.05 percent for health insurance premium, and 0.5 percent for
long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll.

The Town’s contributions for the current and two preceding years, all of which were equal to the
required contributions, were as follows:

Health Benefit Long-Term Disabilit

Retirement Fund Supplement Fund Fund
Years ended June 30,
2008 $936,503 $122,153 $58,168
2007 678,657 94,383 44,944
2006 355,171 63,748 30,356

Agent plan —For the year ended June 30, 2008, active PSPRS members were required by statute to
contribute 7.65 percent of the members’ annual covered payroll, and the Town was required to
contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 10.12 percent.
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NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Cont’d)

Annual Pension Cost — The Town’s pension cost for the agent plan for the year ended June 30,
2007 and related information follows.

Contribution rates:
Town
Plan members
Annual pension cost
Contributions made
Actuarial valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increases
Inflation rate
Amortization method

Remaining amortization

Asset valuation method

PSPRS CORP
10.12% 6.94%
7.65% 7.96%
$478,027 $35,184
$478,027 $35,184
June 30, 2007 June 30, 2007

Projected unit credit

8.5%

5.5%-8.5%

5.0%

Level percent closed for
unfunded actuarial
liability, open for excess
30 years for unfunded
actuarial accrued
liability, 20 years for
excess

Smoothed market value

Projected unit credit

8.5%

5.0%

5.0%

Level percent closed for
unfunded actuarial
liability, open for excess
30 years for unfunded
actuarial accrued
liability, 20 years for
excess

Smoothed market value

Trend Information — Information for the agent plan as of most recent actuarial valuations
follows.

PSPRS:
Year Ended Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2005 $ 367,387 100% -0-
2006 434,478 100 -0-
2007 478,027 100 -0-
CORP:
Year Ended Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2005 $42,661 100% -0-
2006 40,089 100 -0-
2007 35,184 100 -0-
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NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Concl’d)

Funding Progress — An analysis of funding progress for each of the agent plans as of June 30,

2007 follows.
PSPRS:
Unfunded
Liability as
Actuarial Actuarial Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Funding Funded  Covered  of Covered
Date Plan Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 (a) (b) (a-b) (a/b) (c) ([a-bl/c)
2005 $10,351,579 $11,338,052 $§ (986,473) 91.3%  $4,354,983 22.7%
2006 11,345,626 12,654,350 (1,308,724)  89.7 4,614,186 28.4
2007 11,996,669 16,700,207 (4,703,538)  71.8 5,306,785 88.6
CORP:
Unfunded
Liability as
Actuarial Actuarial Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Funding Funded Covered of Covered
Date Plan Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30, (a) (b) (a-b) (a/b) (c) [a-b]/c)
2005 $788,467 $1,000,086 $(211,619) 78.8% $518,393 40.8%
2006 889,875 1,140,381 (250,506) 78.0 515,269 48.6
2007 960,316 1,278,537 (318,221) 75.1 639,247 49.8

NOTE 14 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In September 2008, the Town’s investment in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Pool 5

incurred a loss. The potential impact to the Town’s financial statements is approximately
$682,000.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Budgeted Variance with
___Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original & Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 12,608,840 $ 13,278,681 $ 669,841
Franchise taxes 426,000 516,652 90,652
Intergovernmental 12,732,768 11,773,977 (958,791)
Licenses, fees & permits 1,832,000 2,761,145 929,145
Fines, forfeitures & penalties 210,000 294,577 84,577
Charges for services 873,041 983,094 110,053
Investment earnings 600,000 744,393 144,393
Other 145,000 276,611 131,611
Total revenues 29,427,649 30,629,130 1,201,481
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 19,675,008 7,992,477 11,682,531
Public safety 14,588,297 13,511,713 1,076,584
Culture and recreation 3,910,120 3,291,775 618,345
Capital outlay 1,684,902 (1,684,902)
Total expenditures 38,173,425 26,480,867 11,692,558
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (8,745,776) 4,148,263 12,894,039
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (5,674,102) (5,959,581) (285,479)
Total other financing sources (uses) (5,674,102) (5,959,581) (285,479)
Change in fund balances (14,419,878) (1,811,318) 12,608,560
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 14,419,878 18,477,706 4,057,828
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 16,666,388 $ 16,666,388

See accompanying notes to this schedule.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - HURF

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Budgeted Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original & Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 2,885,758 § 2,639,189 § (246,569)
Intergovernmental 4,208,579 3,698,292 (510,287)
Licenses, fees & permits 31,539 31,539
Investment earnings 187,687 187,687
Other 208,500 78,889 (129,611)
Total revenues 7,302,837 6,635,596 (667,241)
Expenditures:
Current -
Highway and streets 9,564,753 3,549,525 6,015,228
Capital outlay 2,037,942 (2,037,942)
Total expenditures 9,564,753 5,587,467 3,977,286
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (2,261,916) 1,048,129 3,310,045
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (678,370) (678,370)
Total other financing sources (uses) (678,370) (678,370)
Change in fund balances (2,940,286) 369,759 3,310,045
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 2,940,286 3,647,014 706,728
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 4,016,773 $ 4,016,773

See accompanying notes to this schedule.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The adopted budget of the Town is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Page 62



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES

Page 63



(This page intentionally left blank)

Page 64



OTHER MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Page 65



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ORACLE ROAD DEBT SERVICE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Budgeted Variance with
__Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original & Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Special assesments $ 367,709 § 193,023 § (174,686)
Investment earnings , 172,787 172,787
Total revenues 367,709 365,810 (1,899)
Expenditures:
Debt service -
Principal retirement 278,697 195,000 83,697
Interest and fiscal charges 185,797 180,439 5,358
Total expenditures 464,494 375,439 89,055
Change in fund balances (96,785) (9,629) 87,156
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 96,785 106,588 9,803
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 96,959 $ 96,959
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - TOWNWIDE ROADWAY DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Budgeted Variance with
___Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original & Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Impact fees $ 1,080,000 $ 910,741 $ (169,259)
Intergovernmental 12,720,000 5,198,172 (7,521,828)
Investment earnings 339,628 339,628
Other 145,000 172,191 27,191
Total revenues 13,945,000 6,620,732 (7,324,268)
Expenditures:
Current -

Highway and streets 16,586,347 6,925 16,579,422
Capital outlay 7,014,301 (7,014,301)
Debt service -

Principal retirement 2,500,000 (2,500,000)

Interest and fiscal charges 224,994 (224,994)

Total expenditures 16,586,347 9,746,220 6,840,127
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (2,641,347) (3,125,488) (484,141)
Other financing sources (uses):
Loan proceeds 8,000,000 8,000,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 8,000,000 8,000,000
Change in fund balances (2,641,347) 4,874,512 7,515,859
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 2,641,347 3,714,717 1,073,370
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 8,589,229 § 8,589,229
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - MUNICIPAL BUILDING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Budgeted Variance with
Amounts Final Budget
Positive
Original & Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ 15,000 $ 31,773 § 16,773
Total revenues 15,000 31,773 16,773
Expenditures:
Capital outlay 6,612,690 672,370 5,940,320
Total expenditures 6,612,690 672,370 5,940,320
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (6,597,690) (640,597) 5,957,093
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 5,752,000 5,752,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,752,000 5,752,000
Change in fund balances (845,690) 5,111,403 5,957,093
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 845,690 786,830 (58,860)
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 5,898,233 § 5,898,233
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Customer deposits payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

JUNE 30, 2008
Total
4 Non-Major
Municipal Debt Governmental

Special Revenue Service Capital Projects Funds
$ 2,474,121 § 166,519 § 837,898 $ 3,478,538
79,288 79,288
4,841 4,841
$ 2,478,962 § 166,519 § 917,186 § 3,562,667
$ 202,720 $ $ 8,624 § 211,344
8,275 8,275
72 72
750,476 750,476
961,543 8,624 970,167
1,517,419 166,519 908,562 2,592,500
1,517,419 166,519 908,562 2,592,500
$ 2,478,962 § 166,519 § 917,186 $ 3,562,667




TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
ALL NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BY FUND TYPE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Municipal Debt
Special Revenue Service Capital Projects
Revenues:

Sales taxes $ 1,251,128  § $
Intergovernmental 954,044 239,390
Fines, forfeitures & penalties 97,344
Charges for services 57,600
Contributions and donations 249,999
Investment earnings 109,335 5,051
Other 28,099

Total revenues 2,497,550 5,051 489,389
Expenditures:

Current -

General government 772,242 2,777

Public safety 37,457

Highway and streets 551,421

Culture and recreation 32,291

Capital outlay 923,098 757,700
Debt service -

Principal retirement 708,102

Interest and fiscal charges 502,225

Total expenditures 2,316,509 1,210,327 760,477
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 181,041 (1,205,276) (271,088)
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 302,297 1,233,175 1,160,479
Transfers out (210,000)

Total other financing sources (uses) 92,297 1,233,175 1,160,479
Change in fund balances 273,338 27,899 889,391
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,244,081 138,620 19,171
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,517,419 § 166,519 $ 908,562
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Total
Non-Major
Governmental
Funds

$ 1,251,128
1,193,434
97,344

57,600

249,999
114,386

28,099
2,991,990

775,019
37,457
551,421
32,291
1,680,798

. 708,102
502,225
4,287,313

(1,295,323)

2,695,951
(210,000)
2,485,951

1,190,628

1,401,872

$ 2,592,500
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NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than major
capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Revegetation Assurances — accounts for monies received from developers to help ensure
developments are properly revegetated to Town standards.

State Seizures and Forfeitures — accounts for state police seizures and forfeitures received by the
Town.

Federal Seizures and Forfeitures — accounts for federal police seizures and forfeitures received by
the Town.

Bed Tax — accounts for the collection of the 6 percent bed tax revenues which funds projects for
parks and recreation, economic development and Naranja Town Site developments.

Public Transportation — accounts for the operation of the Town’s public transportation system.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Customer deposits payable
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Undesignated
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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JUNE 30, 2008

Revegetation

State Seizures

Federal Seizures

Assurances and Forfeitures and Forfeitures Bed Tax

$ 981,861 $ 150,937 § 206,403 §$ 993,755

2,256 2,048

$ 984,117 $ 150,937 § 206,403 $ 995,803

$ $ $ 2,878 § 181,685
750,476

750,476 2,878 181,685

233,641 150,937 203,525 814,118

233,641 150,937 203,525 814,118

$ 984,117 § 150,937 $ 206,403 $ 995,803




Public

Transportation Totals
$ 141,165 § 2,474,121
537 4,841
$ 141,702 $ 2,478,962
$ 18,157 § 202,720
8,275 8,275
72 72
750,476
26,504 961,543
115,198 1,517,419
115,198 1,517,419
$ 141,702 $ 2,478,962
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Revegetation State Seizures ~ Federal Seizures
Assurances and Forfeitures and Forfeitures
Revenues: .
Sales taxes $ $ $
Intergovernmental
Fines, forfeitures & penalties 58,802 38,542
Charges for services
Investment earnings 47,785 7,626 13,960
Other
Total revenues 47,785 66,428 52,502
Expenditures:
Current -
General government
Public safety 12,438 25,019
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay : 1,273 27,387
Total expenditures 13,711 52,406
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 47,785 52,717 96
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out (210,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (210,000)
Change in fund balances (162,215) 52,717 96
Fund balances, beginning of year 395,856 98,220 203,429
Fund balances, end of year $ 233,641 § 150,937 §$ 203,525
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Public

Bed Tax Transportation Totals
$ 1,251,128 § $ 1,251,128
954,044 954,044
97,344
57,600 57,600
23,792 16,172 109,335
28,099 28,099
1,274,920 1,055,915 2,497,550
772,242 772,242
37,457
551,421 551,421
32,291 32,291
180,558 713,880 923,098
985,091 1,265,301 2,316,509
289,829 (209,386) 181,041
302,297 302,297
(210,000)
302,297 92,297
289,829 92,911 273,338
524,289 22,287 1,244,081
8 814,118 § 115,198 § 1,517,419
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Revegetation Assurances

Variance -
Positive
Budget* Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ $ $
Intergovernmental
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Charges for services
Investment earnings 47,785 47,785
Other
Total revenues 47,785 47,785
Expenditures:
Current -
General government
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 47,785 47,785
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out (210,000) (210,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (210,000) (210,000)
Change in fund balances (162,215) (162,215)
Fund balances, July 1, 2007 395,856 395,856
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 233,641 $ 233,641

*The Revegetation Assurances Fund was included in the Town's budget, however, the budget was -0-.

Page 80



State Seizures and Forfeitures Federal Seizures and Forfeitures

Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ $ $ $ $ $
70,000 58,802 (11,198) 100,000 38,542 (61,458)
7,626 7,626 13,960 13,960
70,000 66,428 (3,572) 100,000 52,502 (47,498)
165,767 12,438 153,329 182,804 25,019 157,785
1,273 (1,273) 27,387 (27,387)
165,767 13,711 152,056 182,804 52,406 130,398
(95,767) 52,717 148,484 (82,804) 96 82,900
(95,767) 52,717 148,484 (82,804 96 82,900
95,767 98,220 2,453 82,804 203,429 120,625
$ $ 150,937 $ 150,937 $ $ 203,525 § 203,525

(Continued)
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
(Concluded)
Bed Tax
Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Sales taxes $ 1,372,293 § 1,251,128 § (121,165)
Intergovernmental
Fines, forfeitures & penalties
Charges for services
Investment earnings 23,792 23,792
Other 15,000 (15,000)
Total revenues 1,387,293 1,274,920 (112,373)
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 1,878,583 772,242 1,106,341
Public safety
Highway and streets
Culture and recreation 32,291 (32,291)
Capital outlay 180,558 (180,558)
Total expenditures 1,878,583 985,091 893,492
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures (491,290) 289,829 781,119
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in fund balances (491,290) 289,829 781,119
Fund balances, July‘ 1, 2007 491,290 524,289 32,999
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 814,118 §$ 814,118
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Public Transportation

Totals

Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)

$ $ $ $ 1,372,293 1,251,128 § (121,165)
298,286 954,044 655,758 298,286 954,044 655,758
170,000 97,344 (72,656)

57,600 57,600 57,600 57,600

16,172 16,172 109,335 109,335
191,000 28,099 (162,901) 206,000 28,099 (177,901)
489,286 1,055,915 566,629 2,046,579 2,497,550 450,971
1,878,583 772,242 1,106,341

348,571 37,457 311,114

792,401 551,421 240,980 792,401 551,421 240,980
32,291 (32,291)
713,880 (713,880) 923,098 (923,098)

792,401 1,265,301 (472,900) 3,019,555 2,316,509 703,046
(303,115) (209,386) 93,729 (972,976) 181,041 1,154,017
302,297 302,297 302,297 302,297

(210,000) (210,000)
302,297 302,297 302,297 92,297 (210,000)
(818) 92,911 93,729 (670,679) 273,338 944,017

818 22,287 21,469 670,679 1,244,081 573,402

$ $ 115,198 § 115,198 $ 1,517,419 § 1,517,419
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NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are created to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt principal and interest.

Municipal Debt Service — accounts for the payments of debt service on the Municipal Property
Corporation Revenue Bonds of 1999, 2000, 2001, 2003 Refunding, 2005, and 2007 Refunding.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NON-MAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Municipal Debt Service
Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Investment earnings $ 5,051 5,051
Other 5,000 (5,000)
Total revenues 5,000 5,051 51
Expenditures:
Debt service -
Principal retirement 925,261 708,102 217,159
Interest and fiscal charges 642,978 502,225 140,753
Total expenditures 1,568,239 1,210,327 357,912
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,563,239) (1,205,276) 357,963
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,383,899 1,233,175 (150,724)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,383,899 1,233,175 (150,724)
Change in fund balances (179,340) 27,899 207,239
Fund balances, July 1,2007 179,340 138,620 (40,720)
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ 166,519 166,519
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NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Capital Projects Funds are created to account for the purchase or construction of major capital
facilities which are not financed by the general, enterprise, or special revenue funds.

Capital Asset Replacement — accounts for revenues dedicated for the routine replacement of Town
vehicles, computers, and other equipment.

Pima County Bond Projects — accounts for the revenues and expenditures for historic preservation
capital improvements funded by grants and from Pima County bond funds.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

Capital Asset Pima County

Replacement Bond Projects Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 500,000 $ 337,898 $ 837,898
Accounts receivable 79,288 79,288
Total assets $ 500,000 $ 417,186 $ 917,186
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ $ 8,624 $ 8,624
Total liabilities 8,624 8,624
Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Undesignated 500,000 408,562 908,562
Total fund balances 500,000 408,562 908,562
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 500,000 $ 417,186 $ 917,186
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Capital Asset Pima County

Replacement Bond Projects Totals
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ $ 239,390 $ 239,390
Contributions and donations 249,999 249,999
Total revenues 489,389 489,389
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 2,777 2,777
Capital outlay 757,700 757,700
Total expenditures 760,477 760,477
‘Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (271,088) (271,088)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 500,000 660,479 1,160,479
Total other financing sources (uses) 500,000 660,479 1,160,479
Change in fund balances 500,000 389,391 889,391
Fund balances, beginning of year 19,171 19,171
Fund balances, end of year $ 500,000 $ 408,562 § 908,562
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NON-MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Capital Asset Replacement

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental $ $ $

Contributions and donations

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current -

General government
Capital outlay 500,000 500,000
Total expenditures 500,000 500,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures : (500,000) 500,000
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 500,000 500,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 500,000 500,000

Change in fund balances 500,000 500,000
Fund balances, July 1, 2007
Fund balances, June 30, 2008 $ $ 500,000 $ 500,000
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Pima County Bond Projects Totals

Variance - Variance -
Positive Positive
Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 463,113 § 239,390 $ (223,723) $ 463,113 § 239390 $ (223,723)
249,999 249,999 249,999 249,999
463,113 489,389 26,276 463,113 489,389 26,276
2,777 2,777) 2,777 2,777)
834,613 757,700 76,913 1,334,613 757,700 576,913
834,613 760,477 74,136 1,334,613 760,477 574,136
(371,500) (271,088) 100,412 (871,500) (271,088) 600,412
165,000 660,479 495,479 665,000 1,160,479 495,479
165,000 660,479 495,479 665,000 1,160,479 495,479
(206,500) 389,391 595,891 (206,500) 889,391 1,095,891
206,500 19,171 (187,329) 206,500 19,171 (187,329)
$ $ 408,562 $ 408,562 $ $ 908,562 $ 908,562
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section presents financial statement trends as well as detailed financial and operational
information not available elsewhere in the report. The statistical section is intended to enhance the
reader’s understanding of the information presented in the financial statements, notes to the financial
statements, and other supplementary information presented in this report. The statistical section is
comprised of the five categories of statistical information presented below.

Financial Trends _
These schedules contain information on financial trends to help the reader understand how the
Town’s financial position and financial activities have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the Town’s
ability to generate property revenue.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader evaluate the Town’s current levels of
outstanding debt as well as assess the Town’s ability to make debt payments and/or issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules present various demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment in which the Town’s financial activities take place and to help
make comparisons with other school districts.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the Town’s operations and various resources to
help the reader draw conclusions as to how the Town’s financial information relates to the
services provided by the Town.

Page 97



(This page intentionally left blank)

Page 98



66 abeg

‘s)usLUSE)S [BIouRLY Spim-usLLuIanoh atedaid o Jeak 1Sl spuozZuY ‘ASj[BA 010 JO UMO] BU} SBM £0-Z00Z SIO0N

10.7/8°102 § L1y'62ELLL £62'926'€9) 222'€59'05L  $ ¥2.'6EY'SL Z51°€06'VS
6GG'0GE'LG 968'ce8’oy /19°120°8¢ 1G/'S68'6E €6Y'9GE2S S¥Z160'vZ

182°220'v1L 1€2'92¢'8 66€05Z'L 1 ov9'129'2) 125'067'2 6EE'6.8'G
19€°LSP'oEL § 068'8/1'22) 2/Z'%59'PL1 6z8'/80'c6  $ 012°2€9'GL 891'€€6'vZ
1/6'GZ6'SY $ 062°98/°8€ 82€'0€6'2E zZeg'ocesz $ 16998912 9/¥'€85°2)
8¥6°159'7C lvlesT'ee 9€5'866°C¢ 0S0°66¥' 72 L8z°/0L°ce ¥€S29Z'0)

- - L0O'LEE'T 086°0L£'2 88¥'Z6¥'E 682°G.5'E

€20'v22'1Z $ £Y0'vES'GL 162'0¥2" L Z09'9%S ¢ (2.5°¢16'pL) gGlLisr'e
9c.8v6'65L § /89°Z¥G8EL G96°G6E LEL o6s'g6z'czl $ 120°€62°eS 9/2'0Z¢'.¢
119'869'92 60L°12G°€Z 180°€90'G1 102'v6E°GL ZLL'8vZ6) L12'gzg'el

18/°2/0'7) 1€2'92¢€'8 86£'616'8 099'09¢'G1 £€0'866°E 055'€0€'2
PreLLLGLL S Ly8'vr9'901) agy'sLy L0l €ZT'IPs'e6  $ Z8Z'9v5'0¢ 5L0'88L'1Z
8002 1002 9002 5002 ¥002 £002

JeaA [eosi4
(@aLanvnNn)
(ONILNNODDV 40 SISvE TvNHOOY)
SHVYIA TvOSId XIS LSV
ININOJINOD A9 S13SSY 13N

VYNOZIHY ‘AFTIVA OHO 40 NMOL

juswiedsq aoueui4 AS|lBA OJO JO UMO] :82IN0S

sjesse Jau Juswulanob Aewnd jejoj

pajoLlsalun

pajouIsay

1gop paje|al jo Jau ‘sjasse |ejded uj pajsenu|
juswiutonoh Aewd

s}esse Jau saljiAljoe adAl-sssuisng [ejo

psolsaiun

pajpLsay

1gep paje|al JO 18U ‘sjasse [euded uj pejseu|
saninoe adAl-ssauisng

SJOSSE JaU SSHIAIOE [BJUSWUIBA0B |ejo |

pejoL}salufn

psjoLlsey

199p paje|al Jo Jau ‘sjasse [ejdes ul pejsanu)
SOIJIALOR [BJUSLUUIBACD)



020°96.°0F Z0Z'¥99°EE 100'6EV' 22 $ ¥8Z'ZEL'LE LZS'EV6'EE 0£0'089°02  $
G£9'82.'02 1€9'¢89'9} £62'889'71 0/8'006 'L Zv9'ISL°TL oOvy' S L
€80°/95'¢ 021'990°€ 105°829 IR XA 960°0v8 1G1'968'L

- - - - - 005°262
209'26¢ szl Lov'Le oLL'pL - G
0G6°€08°9L 9ee’'/19'el 16E'8E0' VL SLPLS6'LL 9v5'IL6'LL 0z.'08E'0L
68€'790°02 1/5'086'91 ¥11'06.°C) YLy'1E2'22 6/8'681°12 ¥8G'GyL'8
628v92°0L 169°12e8 Ov9'y66'E 1ZLyegel 8c9'/Eh'E) 868'02G°L
£00'619'G 698°€68'% 798855y Zro'9Ley ¥19'6/9'€ 160°ZLS'E
880°L12 vzL'zel Zr8'esl Z09'96¢ €YG°0L) vap'LelL
GOP'TL6'E 188'2v9'e gogeloy  $ 670'¥8.'E $20'206'€ GoL'166C %
£86'902'8Y GE0'ZES '€ gze'oer'se  § 6¥Z G627 625 29€°0€ G8v'99c'6z  $
8Y6'€G8Z1 €6L°12G L1 ¥96'055 0L 190'716'6 6£5°€00°'6 €81'0EL'6
€197/1 GeT VL GB9'LLL 697112 165Gy 86701
G1Z2'9/9'CL 856°9vP'LL £98'8E7'0L Z65'2v9'6 886'/56'8 GE€Z'520'6
GEO'ESE'SE Zr8'010'2E ¥9/'698'/¢ 881°18€'¥e 066'€9€'L2 ZOE'9EL 0T
¥10'286 9££'966 €21'508 Lec’es9 /017961 86/ 795
€/6'vP9'E yie'sle's LyE'PLO'E 90¢'1£9'2 £11'995°C Gi'Z6ET
z.6'262'L 9/2'152') 9z0'zeL'S vEZ'68L'Y z.1'058'C 0LL'€L9'C
0GZ'1¥E'vL 119'25€'CL ZrS'GSLLL £G1'60E°0L 612'025'6 L6E'CL0'6
99/°080°6 G¥Z'625'L zeL'zot'L % ¥98°/66'G 6LE126'S 861'265'c  $

8002 1002 9002 G002 002 £002

JBBA |BOSIH
(@3LanvnNn)

(ONILNNODODV 40 SISYd TYNHOOV)

SHVYIA TVOSId XIS LSV
S13SSV L3N NI SIONVHO
YNOZIYV ‘AFTIVA 04O 40 NMOL

00} 8bed

sanuanal weiboud juswuianochb Aewud (210}
sanuanal weibolid saniagore adAy-ssauisng |ejo |
suolnguiuoo pue syuelb [eyden
suonngLueo pue syueib bupeisdo
Aun Jeremwio}s
191N
:$901MI8S Jo} sebiey)d
‘saljAoe adAj-ssauisng

sanuanal weibolid sajiaoe [ejuswulanob [ejoj
suonngiuoo pue syuelb jeyde)
suonnguIuoo pue syuelb Buieledpo
sjeans pue shemybiy
JuswiuIBNob |essusg)
:$90IAIRG 10} sabiey) pue saul4 ‘sesd
'SSIHIAIIOR [BJUSWIUIBAOD)
sonuaAsy welboid

sasuadxa juswuianob Aewnd ejo |
sasuadxa sanianoe adA}-ssauisng jejo )
abeulelp Ja]emulLIo}g
91BN
‘saljiAloe adAl-ssauisng

sasuadxa/sanialloe |ejuswuianob [ejo ]
1gep wusl-Buoy} uo jsassiu|
uoljeaIdsl pue ainynyd
sjoals pue shemybiy
fiopeg olignd
juswiuienob [eisusn

‘SAIJIAIOR [BIUSLULIBAOD)

sasuadx3y



L0l ebed

‘S)USLLS]E]S [eIoUBUY apIM-JusWwiLISA0b aledaud o} Jeak is1l s euUOZUY 'AS||BA 01O JO UMO] 8y} SBM £0-200Z 910N

Juswipeds( sousul4 A8} 0JO JO UMO] :82in0g

0£Z's¥S'vz ¢ Ge6'loL'lz  $ p/0'slz'el  $ £89'661'82  $ 2/6'Ge6'02 $ v2s'186r  $ wswisAch Areud jejof

L8L'6EL L Z91'952'9 96a'cLL'S GE6'699'G 122'E0L'Y 98z'¢Ge'e sapinoe adAj-ssauisng

6¥0'90¥'ZL  $ £26'sPe'rL  $ G/e'660'8  $ 8v1'626'22 % lsz'zey'oL  $ 8ez'9z9't  $ SOIAIOR [BJUSWILISA0D

s}ossy }oN ul abueyn

£61'966'LE  $ 818'696'0¢ $ Z6E'vSeve 8 8v9'86e'ész  $ 086'666'9)  $ 6/6'296'¢L  § weawuenob Aewd ejog

(906°6€/) $Z0'760'L 196'GE0"} 921'€89 8L1'6¥¢ (226°05) saaoe adAy-ssauisng [e1o
(000°009°}) (€18'69) 8/1'6/ ¥61°16 000'%9 - sigjsuel]
P67'798 1€8'e9l’} 681'956 26166 811682 (22608) (ssoy) sBuluies jusLuisanu]

:sanaoe adAj-ssauisng

669°'169'2¢ ¥6/'G18'62 GZy'8Le'sz 225'619'v2 298'0L9'91 956'819'CL SSIlIAIO. [RjusLILIan0b B0
000'009°} £18'69 (8/2'61) (¥61°16) (000'%9) - sigysuel]

- - - - - (sz5'0¢) S}esse paxly JO 3[es Uo SSO7 - Way jeradg
¥G9'065') LWo'LiP'L 161’166 8€Z'/GG 816'182 (0LL'%¥2) (ssoj) sBuiures juswisaAu)

- - - Log'eer's - - sjusLLSsasse |einadg
6/8'88L'L 671921 09G°LPG'L ¥60'G6¢'L Yov'vic'L G0g'208')L Bulieys snusAal Xe} Nal| oINe PajoLIsaIuN
9l0'1z9'e ¥98'viL'e 100°ZEP'E 9/£'856'C #19'989'C TL1'T2E'T Bueys anusAsl xe} S|es 8jels pPajoLIsalUN
€9/'v¥5'G GOE'eLY'Y LIv'ErE'S G19'6E6'C 998'6¥8°2 G00'L9L'E Buueys enusnal sjels pajoLIsaIuN
Lw2'016 112'8€0') 116'860') 618°2¥G'L 8v8'681 "1 12£'688 $99) Joedw|
269'916 GlL'8lY Zy'SEY Z8¥'2ov 16918 681 LYE soxe] asiyouel
866'89L'2L  $ ogo'c/g'9l  $ 609'sS¥'ZL  $ 16,0656 $ Gee've6’. 8 60£'9/8'6  $ soxe} sojeg

‘sSoXe |
”mm_~_>_u0m jelusuiUuIBA0D)
S]9SSY JoN ul mwm:mcu JOUl0 pue SBaNUdADY |elaudd)
(cos'0Lr'l) ¢ (cegz08'6) ¢ (1ze'Lse'oL) $ geoze8c  $ z66'G.G6'c ¢ (ssv'98s'8)  § sasuadxe Jou juswiuisaoh Arewud jejof
189'%18'/ 8Ey'Z9L's 62.'IEL'Y 608'986'7 €0L'vS.'E £92'707'S sonAnor adAy-ssauisng
(og9'sgz'st) $ (12Z'00'GL) ¢ (0s0'6LL'SL) & (viL'BvL'D) 8 (L11'821) $ (812'066'LL) & SBIHIAJO. [BJUSWILISA0D
sanuaAay/(asuadx3) JoN

8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002

189 [e0sld



201 abed

wswpedaq soueuld A3j[BA 0IQ JO UMOL (92IN0S

(ONILNNODOV 40 SISVYE TYNYOOV a3I4Iaon)

SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV

SANNH TVLNINNHYIAOD 40 STFONVIVE NN

VYNOZIMY 'ATTIVA O¥O 40 NMOL

¥69'€6L'1C 120696 $ 880'98/'6  $ GbZ'69Z'SL $  G98°Geo'tl $  G2Ze'BLLL  $  1S8'2SL'8l 18/'908'L2 yEP'O0E'ZL § psessslL
8/¥'€9C 80Z'SC §50'082 Zee'eoy LOEVIE viS'9ll €EV'EBL 208'626 9£8'002 191'¢9¢
¥20'96€'S1 812'025'y 9£8'686'Y 216'cL6'01L 081'€25'01 8Z1'8eP’S 0l5'20L'SL LLY'9eS 8L oze'lee's +8/'160'6
Z61'7ES'S G60°'168'Y €15'6EV'Y 526'958'c ziv'oel'e ¥0Z'00L'¢ y16'162' 80S'0VE'C 8/2'898'C €0L'€6E'C
- - $  $z9'08 $ 9/0'9e $  ZTI6'LL $  6.0G $ - - - $ -
88£'999'9L 90L'/.¥'8L  $ 16V'EIE YL §  2lcyvilL §  685p8E6 & JeElvv'8  § ¥B1'26E0L £98'0¢z’ L1 101'999'0L $  so0'p9g']
88€'999'9L 90L'LL¥'8L Y2Z'9se v 09L'vrL'LE 19€'1/€'6 9¥Z'180'8 606'€90°0} 029'./8'0L 0€L'581°0L 680'8VE'8
- - $ 1922 $ 2zl $ 2L $  180'VSE ¢ geeeee A4 L/6'08Y $  9l6'GLS

8002 1002 9002 5002 002 €002 2002 1002 0002 6661

JeaA |eosi4
(@alianvNn)

spuny [ejuswiwaAob Jaylo jje [ejo L

spuny saiAes 1980
spuny syosfoud eyden
spuny anuaaal e1oads
:uj papiodal ‘pansasalun
paniasay
SpUn4 [BJUSLULIBAOD) JBUIO Y

puny jesaush |ejo)
panlasaun
penlasay

pun4 |eisus9



(This page intentionally left blank)

Page 103



gee'szl $ wig'ovo'y ¢ (olz'eye'e) $ (18S'Ls¥) ¢ ssv'eie’t $  (662'9.2'9) $  (eeS'esy'y) §  (15€'019'7) ¢ 9l2'eszz § 98L'eEL'Y ¢
9/9'6YL'Ly ¥86'G6€'8€ LEG'€96'CY L8G'EES'EY ovl'geo'se 669'298'/Z LOv'¥88'62 898'888'¥C 015'608'61 ¥12'510°2L

- 298'8¢2 18820} 12€'152 Siy'es - - 6.8°008 - 9z1'es
859,06 502’126 8se'Lel 521'685 (A4 4 T4 4 86.'79S veL'zes 088'919 281'55¢ 980'LvE
zol'eop'e €18'2/0'L 665'958'C 061'655' 06Z°L¥S 096'9LS 95p'965" | 000021t 000'08% 000'00%
€1€'060'L 061'299'01L - - - - 28.'v60'8 0£9'829'c 8G0'/ES'G £v8'8/8

- - - - - - - - 000'009 -
990'v2e'e 822's0l'E 6v2'898'c 212'0v9'C 6Y6'0V5'C AYA 714 199'vi¥'L oyR'e6l'l ¥80°2€9 Z0£'989
L18'201'y 168'89L' L95'eLL'eL ezz'Lel'Le zze'esl'LL 0£0'268'8 9/9'vyL'e 6L1'¥26' 9v1'58'L cL0'6yL'L
0L1'6YG'EL 66.'808'LL G16'989'} 1 8Z1'680°0) 512'9zZv'6 £v9'06.'8 $£9'985'8 [AZNA2 9] 06£'912'9 glo'ove's
96v'29.'8 0£0'610'2 956'886'6 212'929'6 21¥'008'S z50'869'9 290'550'9 [AVA: T 0s0'8zZL'y 899'L1E'E
LE0'sL2'Lvs  868'9ep'ey & 12€'6l0'9e $ 900290ty §  8650FRZE §  96£98GLZ §  808'00V'SC $  LlG'8lc'Cz $  98L'290CZ $  006'/9.9L $
067655 L9z'sel 82Y'GTe $€0'85Y Liy'6ee 9/€'8/L Yy¥'051 9zL'zLy 9e0'69 206'0S
¥59'065'} L9 Liv'L 151'166 8€2'155 815182 (0L2'vv2) 19e'5/8 zee'LsL')L G09'Zee’t 1£2'096
ivl'ole 212'8€0'L 116'860'L Loe's8y’L 8r8'68l'L - - - - -
£20'c6l ozg'ssl - 618'215'L - 12£'588 888'CI¥'C Ze0'680' ¥18'680°E yeg'eiv'e
66662 LLL'BL 12€'6 - Lsz'oe Lee'ze - 68.L'¢ JAZAL lo0'z
¥69'010'L 126'920'L 9/9'ev6 785'088 18z'¢z8 90¥'cE9 ovi'eYs 159'/8¢ 108'96¢ SY6'8EC
¥89'26L'2 168'89€'2 y9g'eey'e 8’725’ 9/6'885'2 895'78.L'L LSL'0EP'L 592'9LL'L 86.'€19'L 0z8'Liv'y
126'16€ 85¥'62y ovz'zoy L2v'oze 0si'eor 045'20€ 6ee'9le GGL'EEE 129'7ve Zeo'lee
6/8'c98'LZ €12'50¥'8L sLz'ell'9l 8Y8'6£€°6Z 500°'066'€C 9v2'98L'LL YS¥' 166’21 806'a2E'8 289'/91'6 €0¥'08L'9
059'689'L1$  S08'IGE'ZL $  L€0'168'2L $  €£/2686'6 $  26596C'8 $  86L°4129 $  GeLv/9'9 $  IGl'ezy'9 § 9lL'BEL'9 §  ZELBISY $

8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002 2002 100z 0002 6661

Jes A |eosid
(@3uanvnn)

(ONILNNODOV 40 SISYE IYNHOIY a3idiaon)

SHVIA TvOSId N2L 1SV
SANNS TYININNEIAOD 40 SFONVIVE GNN NI SONVYHO
VYNOZIEY ‘ASTIVA OHO 40 NMOL

y01 abed

sainypusdxa (Jepun) JjoAo
senuanal Jo S$80X]

sain)ipuadxs |ejo ]

S]SOD aouenss| puog
sabieyo [eosyy pue jsaie]
Juswalnel jedputd

8oIAIBS 1980

Kepno jeyded

sjuawbpnf pue swie)

uoljES08 pue aunynd

sjeals pue skemybiH

Aiojes aljand

uswiwanob jessusn

sainyjpuadx3y
sanuaAal [eJo]

senuaaal syl
sBujLies Jusunssaul

saa} peduw)

sjusLUSsasse [eloadg
SUOBUOP pUE SUOINQLIUCD
saoinss Joj sabley)
syuuad pue sasusol
sanyapio} pue sauld
[ejuswiwsrobialuy

soxe |

sanuanay



%EIZH %LT L %Ly'El %6077} %90°G %SY ¥ %9501 %262} %bS'y %ELL
GGe'sZL's $ gyL'sge'e ¢  (8e6'c98'2) $ 8GZ'L9¥'E $ Zvi'eve's §  (662'095'%) ¢ (ess'esy'd) § 60L'190°01 $ 9/z'esT'e $ ole'Liy'e §
000'009'6 (921's5) 212'%80'7 6£8'8€6'€ #89'0£0'G 000'9LL'L - 09¥'1LL9'ZL - ogL'szL't
(166'212'9) (16'258'2) (Lve'ee’L) (919'961°1L) (agl'ove’t) (8ri'gze’l) (FOL'6GE'L) (y0s'ey6'L) (018'919'1) (916'704°1)
166'LvY'8 ¥62'126'2 695'8¥2'} zey'sol't 891281} 8v1'8ze't #01'51°} Y0G'EV6' L 018'919't 916'70L'L

- - 050791’y - - - - - - -

- (gey'0vs'L) - - (910'8¥'G) - - - - -

- 081'68¢"} - - 00L'2.5'S - - - - -
000°000'8 - - ££0'0€0'y 000°000'S - - - - -

- - - - - 000'9kL'} - - - -

- - - - - - - 09Y'129'2L - 6¥€'069'L

- - - - - - - - - 18L'vE

- 612'62 - - - - - - - -

8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £00Z 2002 1002 0002 6661

IBBA |BOSI

gol ebed

Juawipeda(] aouell4 AS|iBA 00O JO UMO] 82In0S

sainjpuadxa jeydesuou
Jjo abejusdlad e se 82lAl8S 1G8Q

seouejeq punj ul aBuBYD JaN

(sasn) saounos Buoueuly Jaylo [Blo]

N0 SIBJSUBIL
uj sJgjsuel}

198p wusy-Buoj jo souenss|

juabe moioss Jgap papunjal o} Juswihed
1gep Buipunyal Jo souenssj

a|qeAed ueoj wa)-buoj Jo 8oUBNSS|

UBO] WOJ} SPeadold

SpUO(Q O S[ES WOoJ} SPasd0id
sjuswaaibe aseal |eyded woly spesdoid
uonedionied Jo s8jeoyiLia Wol} SPasdoid
panssi Spuoq o wniald

(sesn) seainog Bujdueuly J8UI0



90| abed

JaWwLIoju] 92JOPION BUOZIY Sishojdw3 jedidulld :82i1n0S

(@3lianvnNn)
8002 ‘0¢ IANNP
SHIAOTAINT TVdIONIYd
VYNOZIYY ‘AT TIVA OHO 40 NMOL

%0 Ly 868°L %60°v¢C 009'¢c [elol
%19} 0l g9 S8101S pood 0Ogayv
%LLT 8 fole] auejdeinoag
%EeCC 8 06 anjo Agunod Asjep 010
%8Y'¢ L 001 uonewolny penbuep
%CL'E 1] 0S1 %000 gnio Aunod Jopejsinbuo |3 uoliH
%000 %S0 0l 08 OSOJSIA 18 gniD JI0D/4j0D uoAue) auoig
%¥8°0 6 Gzl fyeay buo
%0L°¢ 9 gcl %060 8 sel 1ebie ]
%000 %00°} L 0G1 jodaQ swoH
%0.L°S € oge %Ly L 9 0ce $210}g pood s,
%88'Y 14 161 %00°¢ G 1217474 AejieA 010 jo umo}
%000 %SL'E 14 09s KojjeA 010 Jsjua [BOIpS|\ }SSMYLION
%.8VL L 009 %L0Y € 009 posey Jopejsinbuod |3 uoiH
%¥e9 [4 9s¢ %E0 Y A 09 s|ooyog oljand Jsjesypyduy
%000 %SS Vv } 089 SwialsAg |eolpajy euBjUSA
uswiAojdwg yuey saafodwg juswAodwy yuey saaA0|dWT I9Ro[dwg
umo] |ejol jo umo] [ejo] jo
abejusolad abejuadiad
6661 800¢



101 obed

adA} ssauisng Ag sjuaswAed xe} so|es Jo ejep ajgejieAe Jo 1eak [easl 11l 94} S GOOZ ‘S1IO0N
anuaAsy Jo Juswpeda( BUOZUY :82IN0S

%Z8'cYy 120°166°€ $ %81°8€ 6.2'6EV'9 $ jelo|
%ce’ L oL Lop'ezl uoioNIISuoD d 1ohedxe |
%691 6 yE9°2G) apel| |ie19Y O Johedxe ]
%SG.L' L 8 €69'291 apel] |iejoy N 12Aedxe |
%Z6'L JA 25061 uoloNNSUoD W 1ekedxe }
%0€°C 9 y'vie uolonsUoD 7 Jehedxe |
%18L Z 18972/ HOONISU0D) M Jokedxe |
%8€°C S geg’'lee %081 oL 129862 spei] |leloy r tohedxe ]
%000 %081 6 8176'862 UORONJISU0D | Johedxe
%000 %G6'L 8 §S0'vZe spel] |lejoy H 1ehedxe ]
%000 %92'C L 6L9'v.E uogoNAsuoY 9 1afedxe ]
%000 %G9'E 9 G15'609 uononsuoy 4 1ofedxe |
%CL'S 14 GLLCeS %Z8'E S 2.5'vE9 spel| ey 3 1ohedxe )
%129 € 50.'¥8S %P8 ¥ #02'1£9 apei] [ie1oy q Jofedxe |
%000 %6E 't € 618'82/ Aumnn O Jofedxe |
%000 %1L0'S 4 v0e'LER uonoNAsUo) g Jehedxe ]
%99'L 1 l 008°980°L $ %120l l 919'60L°L $ UOIEPOLIWIOIDY v 1ohedxe |

sjuowed xe| Nuey sjuswifed sjuawiAed xej Nuey sjuswAied adA] ssauisng JeRedxe]

sajeg [ejo | Xe| sajeg sajes [eloL xe| sojes
Jo abejusdiad o abejuaoiad
G00C 1e3A [eosld 800¢ Jea A [edsly
(@3LanvnNn)

OOV SHVYIA IFHHL ANV dVIA INFHHNO
SHIAVIXVL STTVS TVdIONIdd
YNOZIMY ‘AFTIVA OHO 40 NMOL



%002 %002 %002 %002 %002 %00°Z %002 %002 %002 %002
0zL'ZL $ 295GL $ ¥8seL $ 2226 & 0JzZ8 § €69 $ G/99 $ _S6E9 6EL9  $ 10SY  §
AX:] 8.y sev zoy zle Zve zoe £92 szz 102
/8¢ 191 161 89 (e1) 0s 47 () 16 z
4% cle z92 6.8 £6¢ g8z 852 152 ez 952
967 658 S5l Zvl Lol z9 Sh €L 74 Sl
5112 02.'2 Z6€'C 888'L 9551 p5e°L 0s2'L z80°'L £50'L 916
10y 599'c 622'S v6'e AN 980'Z 118"t €921 1691 ¥29
69 85 95 s 14 Ie 19 gl gl ek
6.2'1 92z 16 ali 0s Lol SS ze 8z Zl
08z 181 s9l 181 62 12 9 z € €
8e0', $ se8'9 $ 2Zo9s $  ves'e $  vio'e $ 88t 0§ 6.2C 0§  EL6T gz0'c  $ 868C $
8002 1002 9002 5002 ¥00Z €002 2002 1002 0002 6661
1B\ |BOSIH
(@3uanvnn)
SHVIA TvOSId NIL 1SV
AHODIALYO Ag STTVS F1aVXVL

YNOZI¥V ‘AITIVA OHO 40 NMOL

801 obed

2002 °} [udy 8Aposy3 xel safes AN %2

9002 ‘1 Alenuep eAoay3 xe | pag [BUOHIPPY %9
002 J. >m_>~ BAI0BYT XB] SO|RS UoHONISUOD %Y
100Z '} Jequisidas aAnoayd Xe | pag [BUOHPPY %E
0661 'L ABIN 8AROBYT XB ] Pag |eUOHPPY %L
BION.

onusAsy 0 Jusupedaq BUOZIY :80IN0S

LSlBl XB] $3|28S UMO |

felol

asjyoueld s|qed
BYio Iiv

S80ISS

2leIsy |eay @ 8ouUBINSU| ‘S3uBUl4

BuibpoT ¢ sieg ‘sjueinesey

Spel] |iejsy

apel] S|ES3jOUAA

SalljiN '@ suoiedunwwo) ‘Buisnoyaiepn ‘uopenodsuel)
Bunnjoenuepy

uojoNsuoD



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Town of Oro
Town of Oro Town of Oro Valley Town of Oro

Fiscal Valley Valley Construction Valley

Year Sales Tax Bed Tax Sales Tax Utility Sales Tax Pima County
1999 2.00% 1.00% 2.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2000 2.00% 1.00% 2.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2001 2.00% 3.00% 2.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2002 2.00% 3.00% 2.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2003 2.00% 3.00% 2.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2004 2.00% 3.00% 4.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2005 2.00% 3.00% 4.00% 0.00% 5.60%
2006 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 0.00% 6.10%
2007 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 6.10%
2008 2.00% 6.00% 4.00% 2.00% 6.10%

Source: Arizona Department of Revenue
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

JUNE 30, 2008

(UNAUDITED)
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Outstanding Applicable Debt

Pima County $ 349,542,000 716% $ 25,024,156
Pima County Community College District 44,500,000 7.16% % 3,185,812
Pima County Flood Control District 725,000 7.16% $ 51,904
Amphitheater Unified School District No. 10 76,740,000 40.03% $ 30,718,834
Town of Oro Valley None 100.00% None
Total direct and overlapping debt 58,980,706

Source: Pima County, Pima County Community College District and Amphitheater Unified School District No. 10.

(1) Proportion applicable to the Town of Oro Valley, Arizona, is computed on the ratio of secondary

assessed valuation for 2007-08.
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY
CALCULATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
JUNE 30, 2008
(UNAUDITED)

Net secondary assessed valuation $ 686,707,506

Water, Sewer, Light, Parks, Open Space and
Recreational Facility Bonds

Debt limit - 20% of secondary net assessed valuation $ 137,341,501

Debt applicable to limit
General obligation bonds outstanding 3 -
Less amount set aside for repayment of debt -
Net debt applicable to limit -

20% legal debt margin $ 137,341,501

All other general obligation bonds

Debt Limit - 6% of secondary net assessed valuation 41,202,450

Debt applicable to limit
General obligation bonds outstanding $ -
Less amount set aside for repayment of debt -
Net debt applicable to limit -

All other general obligation bonds debt margin 41,202,450

Total legal debt margin $ 178,543,951

Source: Pima County Assessor's Office
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TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Water Utility Revenue Bonds
Fiscal Gross Debt Service
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage
1999 $ 6,173,325 $ 350,000 $ 1,481,921 1,831,921 3.37
2000 8,706,515 425,000 1,627,675 2,052,675 4.24
2001 8,330,951 1,683,544 1,926,914 3,610,458 2.31
2002 9,435,130 1,768,040 2,173,192 3,941,232 2,39
2003 10,380,720 1,578,040 2,395,359 3,973,399 2.61
2004 12,202,664 1,478,710 2,650,195 4,128,905 2.96
2005 12,544,928 1,473,710 2,949,409 4,423,119 2.84
2006 14,989,621 1,907,362 2,888,226 4,795,588 3.13
2007 14,810,173 2,336,330 2,552,081 4,888,411 3.03
2008 17,668,212 1,981,898 2,452,583 4,434,481 3.98
Governmental Revenue Bonds
Fiscal Gross Debt Service
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage
1999 $ - $ - $ - - 0.00
2000 14,300,536 - 40,606 40,606 352.18
2001 15,220,985 140,000 65,935 205,935 73.91
2002 16,268,695 486,456 320,846 807,302 20.15
2003 16,435,018 346,960 320,599 667,659 24.62
2004 19,837,894 361,290 386,228 747,518 26.54
2005 21,011,720 456,290 433,108 889,398 23.62
2006 25,018,727 452,638 415,640 868,278 28.81
2007 29,200,152 573,670 637,067 1,210,737 2412
2008 30,629,130 708,102 501,150 1,209,252 25.33
Certificates of Participation
Fiscal Gross Debt Service
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage
1999 $11,840,398 $ 310,000 $ 289,039 599,039 19.77
2000 14,300,536 390,000 271,756 661,756 21.61
2001 15,220,985 155,000 253,322 408,322 37.28
2002 16,268,695 160,000 245,938 405,938 40.08
2003 16,435,018 170,000 237,994 407,994 40.28
2004 19,837,894 180,000 15,768 195,768 101.33
2005 21,011,720 190,000 26,690 216,690 96.97
2006 25,018,727 205,000 16,566 221,566 112.92
2007 29,200,152 215,000 5,644 220,644 0.00
2008 30,629,130 - - - 0.00
Special Assessment
Fiscal Gross Debt Service
Year Revenues Principal Interest Total Coverage
1999 $ 40,985 $ 90,000 $ 13,050 103,050 0.40
2000 5,048 90,000 6,525 96,525 0.05
2001 - - - - 0.00
2002 - - - - 0.00
2003 - - - - 0.00
2004 - - - - 0.00
2005 - - - - 0.00
2006 - - 176,967 176,967 0.00
2007 379,840 185,000 186,828 371,828 1.02
2008 365,810 195,000 177,577 372,577 0.98

Source: Town of Oro Valley Finance Department



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)
Personal Per
Income Capita
(thousands Personal Unemployment

Year Population of dollars) Income Rate
1999 25,455 $ 792,515,970 $ 31,134 2.3%
2000 29,700 952,420,194 32,068 1.9%
2001 29,700 980,992,800 33,030 2.0%
2002 34,050 1,158,413,770 34,021 2.0%
2003 37,260 1,305,649,691 35,042 2.9%
2004 37,700 1,360,700,031 36,093 2.6%
2005 39,310 1,461,373,787 37,176 2.5%
2006 40,215 1,5639,868,259 38,291 3.0%
2007 42,551 1,678,195,258 39,440 2.6%
2008 43,651 1,773,226,205 40,623 3.0%

Source: US Census Bureau and Arizona Employment statistics

Page 115



00€8lL 00'€lZ 0S0SC 0€ClZ 0£2/2 0£'S8C GSPLE 8F¢ee €G'ESE 08'69¢€

0061

0ovi

002

00'v9
ge'ee

000

00’6

oocl
00'e
0004

SL'v
00'c
009
00°L
0o¢c
ooe
00v

661

00'9¢

00°GL

05’9

05'69
00ve

00}

o0sel

0S5°G1
00c
00¥L

00’9
0o'c
S52'9
S’}
0s¢
ooe
00v

000¢

00'8c

0s¢ce

052

00'89
ooce

00¢c

058°GlL

0591
00y
00°Z1L

002
0sc
009
00’}
0o'e
0o¢e
00y

100¢

juawpeda souBUld A8jjeA 0JQ JO UMO] :80IN0S

002 00€e 00EE O00¥e 00¥E G'GE  0G'GE
00'ce 00¢€e 0682 0SS 00¥S €L'eS O0L'9S
05, 08, 05Z. 088 068 &8 058
00, 00¥. 0088 0026 0096 006G0L 0080L
009¢ 006 006C 0082 006 00¥c O00VE
00¥L 00%L OOVl 00¥%L ¢€¥6lL 0€6l Ov6l
0€0C 0€0Z 0€0C 080c 080C 004C O0lL'8C
0S#L 00¥L 0S€L 0S¢l 0G€lL 00¥L 009
00 00%¥ O00% 00% OOF% 000 000
00'ZL 00ZL 00ZL 009 O009L 00ZL 008
006 006 008 S29 SC0L G20l G2Ool
00Z 00C 00C OOF OO¥ O0OG 008
0s2Z 0. 05. 0972 082 008 006
00z 00C 00C 00C 00¢Cc GS2¢ SC¢
0§CZ 00¢ 00€¢ 00€ 00c O00Y O00%
0o0e 00v O0OF 000G 009 009 OL'8
ooy 00 O00F 0S¥ OSv 09v 09%
c00Z €00 ¥00C S00C 9002 Z00C  800¢C

0¢ aunr jo se seafojdw3 jusjeainbl swi-jin4

(@3Lianvynn)
SHVIA TWOSId N3L 1SV

lejor

Aunn se1em
SHIOM 211Gnd
uno9 aensibep

SISO
SUBIIND

8d1j0d
Kreagi
uoijeaiday pue syied

Buiuoz ¥ Buiuueld

"ulwipy Juswidoasg Ajunwiwo)

fiajeg Buipiing
juswdojanag AjJlunwiwo)

{eba

SlWa)sAg uopeLLlolu|
aoueUl4

juswido|aaa Siwouodg
$30.Nn0s8Yy UBWINH
JabBeuepy umo ]

8| UMOo]

uonesSIuIWPY

NOILONNA A9 SFIAOTNT INITVAINOIA 3NIL-TINS

VNOZIHY ‘ATTIVA OHO 40 NMOL

911 ebed



111 ebed

uswuedaq AN JoIBAA ASIBA 01O JO UMO] :80iN0g

865'989'L1 - 696'6E0°L 865'999 0€9°L 9v¥'259 96/ zzz'ovi'L 016299 2190°LLG" . 8002
028'120°'LL - 602'S10°L ££8'089 - 6.8'2YS GGG'L 955'8/6 #0¥'1L9 Geg'/8l' . 1002
180'G2'0L gee'L 896'0/9 £62'0v6 - $8/'89¢ - $9¢°126 P/¥'v1L9 605'222'L 9002
LL¥'60.'6 - - zZ0¥'00Z'L - G60'LOY - 6/1'cE8 686'GLS 908'85.'9 5002
0.0'€60'6 ope'es - yZLoviL - gzl'ese - 0z¥'LGL $£0'661 810'96£'9 002
662'665'8 962'LS - 262'9GL°L - G/0'661 - 158'989 9£8'00S SY¥'¥00'9 £00Z
gls'ozL's - - 169'891°L - 192'svZ - G66'289 Z.E'v6Y G81'625'S 2002
999'612'9 et AYA - 629'€E6 - £05'582 - 8¥1'/EG 104°20% PPP'ELS Y 1002
2/8'6L1'9 ¥88'sH - 0zZ.'296 - viv'6ze - R4 a4 61/'99¢ 0v9'21L0'y 0002
ceo'cLl'y GS¥'/G $ - v2'8v8 - $ oei'ste ¢ - ¥00'2€€ 908'ezz  $ ¥6¥'920' 6661
|elol paiaipuiun pawie|oay unj pauwiejoay uoljonijsuod pauwieday cozmm_.:_ jeldiswiwIo) jeljuspisay IBSA
/2|ESBIOUM unjg uofonisuo) cozmm_t_ |easi4
(@3 LianvNn)

SHVIA TVOSId N3L 1SV

IdAL ¥3SN A9 SINNIATH ALITLN Y31VM

YNOZIYV 'AITIVA O¥0 40 NMOL



806'9L  8S8'vL  /8€'WL  1£6'Gl 166°CL  98¥'cl  ¥Zs'sl  000°LL  epl'e GLG'9
L¥8'G/L  20Z'S9L 20Z'S9lL 609'06L €82'/ZL €1£/9L  /80°08L /9L'¥SL  SO0¥'ZZL  GEL'GE
lJL'8L  0€8ZL  €9¥'ZL  GS6'OL  8/6'0L  G¥0'9L  GJG'GL 890Gl 182yl szz'clL
ope 19¢ 805 Ll€ £eg 0¥ 105 18/ 900'L ¥86
00096  000'06 000'98 00008  ©000'GZ. 0000 000'S9  WIN VIN V/IN
Z.¥'2L 009'GL  0zZS'€L  0ZS'sl  0ZS'€L  0ZS'El  0gs'el  0gs'el  ozs'el  Ove9
oL 0l ol 0l ol ol 0l ol 0 ¥
of v 8¢ 0¢ €C 12z ol G € }
S0l Ll ¥'s A 08 0¥l v'ol o€ o¢ 8¢
118 G.S 895 08S 2.5 144 AN 89¢ 443 182
e TA 982’2 £50°C 9/0'C ¥81'C 961°C 1102 y1£'C 0S€'C £€8'C
Z68'9 959'9 90L'G oLz 88/'¢ 6LL'Y 05€'9 1G22 LLE'9 206'9
162 €8L's £02'8 099'8 eLY'6 G6L'8 1€2'G 9£9's LLE'8 1282
o74] 4N 16 ¥ZL v6 69 A 8¢ op e
800¢ 1002 9002 G00C ¥00C £00¢ 200¢ 1002 0002 6661

lea A [eosiq

(@3aLianvyNn)

SHVIA TvOSId N3L 1SV
NOILONNL A9 SHOLVOIANI ONILVYHIdO
VYNOZIEY ‘AT TIVA OHO 40 NMOL

811 abed

juswpedaq aoueulH AS|jBA 04O JO UMO] :82JN0S

slabuassed
S8|i 8oy |ejo ]
ysuel}

SUOIJOBULOD [210]
SUOI}DBUUOD MBN
I91BA

SWN|OA UON03JI0D
Kieigry

PaX3IOAA SINOH-UB aoueuSUIR SHIed
suonelad(Q 1004 2land 1O SYIUO]
Ajenuuy pleH swelboid uoieaioay
LOREBI03Y puEe SHled

(sepw) Bupeunsal j9a.S
SHIOAA Jlignd

sysylL

siselly [e10]

suonebisanu|

(oyyen) suonelo

saue|bing
adljod

Wweiboig/uonoun



TOWN OF ORO VALLEY, ARIZONA
WATER RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(UNAUDITED)

Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 GPF
Year monthly per 1,000 per 1,000 per1,000 per1,000 per 1,000

1999 § 98 § 173 N/A N/A N/A N/A

2000 10.81 173 $ 185 N/A N/A N/A

2001 11.25 1.78 208 § 2.3 N/A N/A

2002 12.00 1.90 2.35 3.00 N/A N/A

2003 12.00 1.90 235 3.00 N/A N/A
2004 12.30 1.92 2.55 3.25 N/A $ 021
2005 12.65 1.98 2.68 3.58 N/A 0.21
2006 12.65 1.98 2.68 3.58 N/A 0.21
2007 13.25 2.08 2.81 3.76 N/A 0.25
2008 13.25 2.08 2.81 376§ 500 0.40

Source: Town of Oro Valley Water Utility
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